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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Stockholders and Board of Diréctors of Roto-Rooter, Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of operations,
_cash flows, changes.in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive loss present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
~ position of Roto-Rooter, Inc. (“Company”) and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity
with accounting- principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinjon.on these financial statements
based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with audmng standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance abouf whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement
“presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 4, effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted the provisions‘of Staternent of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangxble Assets..

th@wwm”&-&{ws Lep

"VACmcmnati, Oth
March 5, 2004




Consolidated Statement of Operations

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Cdmpanies

(in thousands, except per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31, L - ‘ o 2‘0(53 o 2002 2001 :
Continuing Operations \ : ’ S
Service revenues and sales........ ... ... i e B $308,871 - $314,176 ~ $337,908
Cost of services provided and goods sold (excluding depreciation) .. ... ... 182,810- 186,285 205,616
General and administrative eXpenses ...........coviiiieeanreninnn. .. . 60,309 51,096 - . 56,546
“Selling and marketing expenses .................. e ... 45,590 45,544 48,178
Depreciation ..., U S 12,054 - 13,587 14,395
Impaxrment restructuring and similar expenses (Notes 4 and 5} ....... ... - 15,828 20,342 24,734
Tortal costs and expenses ..o ... 316,591 316,854 349,469
Loss from operations ................ e e (7,720) (2,678)  {11,561)
Interest expense .........c.oooiiiiiiiiann P e s (2,140) (2,928) _(5,423)
" Distributions on preferred securities (Note 200 ... S L . {1,071) (1,079) (1,113)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (Note 12) ................ccou.... P —_ — (2,617)
Other income —net (Note 8) ..................... el e _ 11,259 4,282 4,987
Income/(loss) before income taxes ................... .. ... R 328 ' (2,403) (15,727)
Income taxes (Note 9). ... ... PR e (4,749) - (6,451) 4,989
Equity in earnings of affiliate. (Note 3). PP SRR 922 . — —
Loss from continuing Operations .......:...........eoueeue..on. N (3,499) , (8,854)  (10,738)
Discontinued Operations (Note 6) ............. e S . 64 6,309 (1,447)
NetLGSS......;......................'.-......V ............................. $ (3,435) . § (2,545) $(12,185)
Loss Per Share ' | ' i
Loss from' continuing operatlons ...................... P . (.35) 90y $§ (1.11)
Net loss e D P L0 8 (35) (26) $ (1.25)
‘Diluted Loss Per Share (Note 17) _ 4 ) : : ‘
Loss from continuing OPErations .. . ....vvvneinnenn. e $ {.35) (.90) §$. (1.11)
Netloss ......ovvvvii... e e $ 0 (L3) (:26) $. (1.25)
Net. Loss Excluding Goodwill Amortlzatlon s . o ‘ S
~ Netloss .............. e e e . $ (3,435) § (2,545) $ (7,564)
Loss per sharé........... o AR e, $ (35§ (26 § (78
Diluted loss per share (Note'17) .. ...........c..ioee.... 8 (35) 8 (26) §(78)
Average Number of Shares’ Outstandmg ‘ R o ‘ ( o
Loss per share.........00. .0 . ... A S 9,924 9,858 9,714
Diluted loss per share (NOte-17) ... ovveveriierenen., el . 9,924 9,858 _ 9,714

The Notes to Financial Statements are integral parts of this statement. _



Consolidated Balance Sheet

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

(in thousands, except shares and par value)

December 31, 2003 2002
Assets
Current assets v '
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10) . ... s, $ 50,587 . § 37,731
Accounts receivable less allowances of $2,919 (2002 —$3,309) .................... 13,592 14,643
VeIt O ES . . ottt e 8,256 9,493
Statutory deposits. ... .. P 9,358 - 12,323
Current deferred income taxes (INote 9) . ... ... i 10,056 9,894
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.................. S 10,236 - 9,931
CTotal Current assets ... ...ttt e .- 102,085 94,015
Investments of deferred compensation plans held in trust (Note 14) .................... 17,743 15,176
Other investments (Notes 3 and 16) ... ... ... . e 25,081 37,326
Note receivable (NOte 6) .. ... e e 12,500 12,500
Properties and equipment, at cost, less accumulated depreciation (Note 11)............. 41,004 48,361
Identifiable intangible assets less accumulated amortization of $1,704
(2002 — $7,167) (NOE 4) .+ ovveeeeeeeeennn. e 592 2,889
Goodwill less accumulated amortization (Note 4) ....... A AP 105,335 110,843
OtRET ASSELS .« . ottt et et e e e e 24,729 17,034
T0tal ASSEES . . vt e $329,069 $338,144
Liabilities
Current liabilities ,
Accounts payable ... ... . e $ 7,20 § 5,686
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 12) ............ ... ... .. .. ... . ... 448 409
Income taxes (INOte O} .. ... i e e e e e 26 369
Deferred coOntract reVENUE ... .ottt et e e e e e e e e 14,362 17,321
Accrued insurance ............. . iien, S PR 16,013 - 17,448
Other current liabilities (Note 13) ... .. i e 21,123 23,513
Total current liabilities .................. P . 59,092 64,746
Long-term debt (INOte 12) ... .. e e 25,931 25,603
Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securltles of the Chemed Capital Trust -
(NOEE 20) - e e e e 14,126 —
Deferred compensation liabilities (Note 14)......... ... ... . . i i 17,733 15,196
Other liabilities (Note 13) ... o i e e e e 19,494 19,991
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 13, 15, 19, 22 and 23) .
Total Liabilities ........... ... i i P 136,376 125,536

Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Securities of the Chemed Capltal Trust
(NOte 20) oo e e S — 14,186

Stockholders’ Equity

Capital stock — authorlzed 15,000,000 shares $1 par; issued 13,452,907 shares :
(2002 — 13,448,475 shares) .. ........o i e 13,453 13,448
Paid-in capital .................................................................. 170,501 168,299
© Retained €arnings . ... ..ottt e 119,746 127,938
Treasury stock — 3,508,663 shares (2002 — 3,630,689 shares), at cost ................ (109,427) (111,582)
Unearned compensation (Note 14) ... ... . o i i i (2,954) (4,694)
Deferred compensation payable in Company stock (Note 14) .................... e 2,308 2,280
Notes receivable for shares sold (INote 18) . ... ..t (934) (952)
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME . ... ... vttt — 3,685
Total Stockholders® Equity ............... D R 192,693 198,422
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity . ................oo oo, $329,069 $338,144

The Notes to Financial Statements are integral parts of this statement.




Consolidated Statement of Changes -
in Stockholders’ Equity ‘

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

(in thousands, except per share data)

Capital Paid-in
Stock Capital
Balance at December 31, 2000 ... e oo, 813,318 - $162,618
- Netloss ... e e e - - —
Dividends paid ($:44 per share) ....................... e e : — —
Stock awards and exercise of stock options (Note 18) ........... ... ... .. ... T C 119 5,055
Decrease-in unearned compensation' (Note 14) ... ... ..o iain. P S, : —_ _
Transfer of deferred compensation payable to other liabilities .................. e PP — 14
Other comprehensive income. ............. . . i i R — —
Purchases of tréasury stock ...... ... . .o PR . = —
Pa{}./rﬁents on notes receivable (Note 18) ..................... R UL [ . — —
OhBE « . oo PERURU LU IR L T 4s)
~..©  Balance at December 31,2001 ................... S . 13,438 - 167,542
Net‘loss .......................................... e e e e e e [ — —_
Dividends paid ($.45 per share) ....... ... . = —
Decrease in unearned compensation (Note 14) ........ ... . . i o — —
Stock:awards and exercise of stock options (Note 18) .................. . P [ 23 974
Other comprehensive 108S. . ... oottt R — -
Payments on notes receivable (Note 18) ......... . ... ... ... .. ... .o S = —
Purchases of treasury stock ............... P o —
Distribution of assets to settle deferred compensation habllmes e P e — —
Other .............................................................. e (13) (217)
" Balance at December 31, 2002 . ...\ oo\o T i i 13,448 168,299
Netloss ..o P U ) — —
Dividends pa1d ($.48 pershare) ........... ...l e e SRR . — —
Decrease in unearned compensation (Note 14) .. .. .. e : el e e, —
Stock awards and exercise of stock options (Note 18)............ P S .- 3 1,620
Other comprehensive loss. ...................... e PR — —
Payments on notes receivable (Note 18) ................ .. ... ........... e OIS L= —
Purchases of treasury stock . ... ... ... .o P . —_ —
Distribution of assets to settle deferred compensation liabilities . ... ............. IR e Voo — —
Other ...t e P 2 582
Balance at December 31,2003 .................. e g e $13,453 §$170,501
Consolidated Statement
of Comprehensive Loss
Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies .
(in thousands) - : . - .
For the Years Ended December 31, S ’ o 2003 2002 2001
Net 10SS. . oo vi e DU DU e $(3,435) $(2,545). $(12,185)
Othér comprehensive income/(loss),-net of income tax -~ '~ o T et
Unrealized holding gains/{losses) on available-for- sale investments arlslng durlng : o -
the Period . ... o e (334) - 246 1,680
Less: Reclassification adjustment for gams on avallable for-sale investments
arising during the period ... ... ... . i i (3,351) {775) (703)
‘ Total ... S ... (3,685) (529) 977
Comprehensive 10Ss ... ... oo $(7,120) $(3,074) $(11,208)

The Notes to Financial Statements are integral parts of these statements.



Deferred

Compensation Accumulated Notes

Treasury Payable in Other Receivable

Retained Stock— Unearned Company Comprehensive for
Earnings at Cost Compensation Stock Income Shares Sold Total
$151,596 $(105,249) $(16,683) $5,500 $3,237 $(2,886) $211,451
(12,185) — — — — — (12,185)
(4,384) — — — - — (4,384)
— (3,654) 5,138 — — — 6,658
— — 4,109 — — — 4,109
— (14) — (2,293) — — (2,293)
— — — — 977 — 977
— (219) — — — — (219)
— (1,288) — — — 1,484 196
13 — — 81 — - {100) (150)
135,040 (110,424) (7,436) 3,288 4,214 (1,502) 204,160
(2,545) — — — — — (2,545)
(4,438) — — — — — (4,438)
— — 2,742 - — — 2,742
— (2,114) — — — — (1,117)
— — — — (529) — (529)
— (338) — —_ — 576 238
— (51) — — — — (51)
— 1,066 — (1,066) — — —
- (119) 279 — 58 — (26) {(38)
127,938 (111,582) (4,694) 2,280 3,685 (952) 198,422
(3,435) — — — — — (3,435)
(4,761) — — — — — (4,761)
— — 1,740 — — — 1,740
— 2,216 — —_ - — 3,839
—_ — —_ — {3,685) — {3,685)
— (23) — — — 34 11
— (69) — — — — (69)
— 31 — (31 — — —
4 - — 59 — 16) 631
$119,746 $(109,427) $ (2,954) $2,308 $ — $ (934) - $192,693




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
NEELOSS ++ e v v e eee s e e e e e e e $ (3,435) $ (2,545) $(12,185)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operations
Depreciation and amortization . . ...ttt 12,809 14,356 21,273
Noncash restructuring and impairment charges....................... 15,828 21,542 15,150
Gains on redemption and sales of available-for-sale investments ........ (5,390) {1,141) (993)
Provision for uncollectible accounts receivable ....................... 2,019 1,808 2,866
Provision for deferred income taxes. .. .........covruiiiiiiiineannn. (501) 459 (6,173)
Discontinued operations (Note 6) ......... .. ... i (64) (6,309) 1,447
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, excluding amounts acquired
in business combinations
Increase in accounts receivable ............. ... ... . L (968) (2,351) (411)
Decrease in statutory reserve requirements . ..................... 2,965 1,008 715
Decrease in inventories ............... e e 1,237 931 79
Decrease/(increase) in prepaid expenses and other current assets . .. (746) (666) 990
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable, deferred contract revenue
and other current liabilities ........... .. ... ... ... ... ... (5,253) (6,724) 7,059
Increase/(decrease) in income taxes ............c..iieiineinon.. 2,732 4,096 (5,535)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets ............................. (2,243) (1,253) 233
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities . . ......................... 2,937 (621) (96)
Noncash expense of internally financed ESOPs . ...................... 1,740 2,742 4,109
Equity in earnings of affiliate ......... ... ... ... .. .. L. (922) — —
Other sOUTces/(USES) . oo o et e (155) 1,562 {(1,405)
Net cash provided by continuing operations ...............covoue.... 22,590 26,894 27,123
Net cash provided by discontinued operations (Note 6) ............... — 2,629 7,258
Net cash provided by operating activities ... .....coviiiniinnennn. 22,590 29,523 34,381
* Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from redemption of available-for-sale investments (Notes 3 and 16) 27,270 — —
Purchase of equity investment in affiliate (Notes 3and 16) ................. (17,999) — —
Capital expenditures. . .. .......ooeveereeinron.. e (11,178)  (11,855)  (14,457)
Deposit to secure merger offer (Note 23).......... .. ... ... ... (10,000) — —
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments (Note 16) ............. 4,493 1,917 1,377
Business combinations, net of cash acquired (Note 7) ...................... (3,850) (1,236) (1,555)
Proceeds from sales of property and equipment ............... ... ... ...... 2,747 2,479 3,676
Net proceeds/(uses) from sale of discontinued operations (Note 6) .......... 1,091 50,676 (6,332)
Investing activities of discontinued operations (Note 6) .............o.onnnn. — (469) (900)
Purchase of Roto-Rooter minority interest. . ..........o.viriiiiinnnennnn. —_ (83) (820)
Otheruses ........ 0o, e e e e (356) (413) (78)
Net cash provided/(used) by investing activities....................... (7,782) 41,016 (19,089)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Dividends paid ... ... ... . e {4,761) (4,438) {4,384)
Issuance of capital stock ... ... . . 3,287 1,547 73S
Purchases of treasury stock . ... e (637) (3,214) (1,226)
Repayment of long-term debt (Note 12) .......... ...t iiiio... (409) (40,378)  (46,377)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt (Note 12) ..........coviinnnnn. - 5,000 35,000
Other SOULCES/{USES) . . .. o\ttt e 568 (50) (293)
Net cash used by financing activities .. ........ .. ... iiiii.., (1,952)  (41,533) (16,545)
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ............................... 12,856 29,006 (1,233)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ................................ 37,731 8,725 9,978
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ........ ... ... ... ... ... .. ... $ 50,587 $37,731 § 8,725

The Notes to Financial Statements are integral parts of this statement.




Notes to Financial Statements

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

1. Summary of Accounting Policies

Prlm:lples of Conisolidation” ,

The consolidated financial statements iniclude the’
accounts of Roto-Rooter, Inc., its wholly owned
subsidiaries and the accounts of the Chemed Capital
Trust (“CCT”) All 51gn1ﬁcant 1ntercompany transactions
have been eliminated. Long-term investments in affiliated
companies representing ownership interests of 20% to
50% are accounted for using the equity method.

Under current accounting rules, the accounts of’ the
CCT are consolidated and the Mandatorily Rédeemable
Preferred Securities (“Preferred Securities’ ’} of the CCT
are classified as 4 noncurrent liability on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet Distributions on the Preferred
Securities are cla551ﬁed on a separate line as a” *
nonoperating expense on the consolidated statement of -

operations.- Undet accounting rules that become effective
_ for the quartet endlng March 31, 2004, the CCT will be

deconsohdated and the Company s Junior Subordinated

Debentures due 2030 (“]JSD”), all of which are held by
the CCT, will Be shown as a liability on the Company’s”
balarice sheet in'the face amount equal to the value of

. the Preférred. Securities outstanding. Interest expense of
the JSD will be classified as interest expense on the
consolidated statement of operations.

Cash Equwalents

Cash equivalents comprise short-term hlghly liquid
investments that have been purchased within three
months of thelr dates of maturlty

Accounts and Loans Receivable .
Trade accounts receivable and loans are recorded at -
the principal balance outstariding less estimated
allowances for uncollectible accounts. Generally,
allowances for trade accounts receivable are provided for
accounts more than 90 days past due; although collection
efforts continue béyond that time. Due to the small
number of loans receivable outstanding, allowances for
loan losses are determined on a case-by-case basis. Final
write-off of overdue accounts’or loans receivable is made
when all reasonable 'collection efforts have been made
and payment is riot forthcoming. Management closely
monitots its receivables and periodically reviews
procedures for the grantmg of credlt to ensure losses are
held to a minimum. ~ *
Inventories . . :
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market.
For determining the value of i 1nventor1es, the ﬁrst -in, first-
out (“FIFO”) method is used .

: Statutory Deposlts :
Statutory deposits are funds held in a segregated
account:in the Company’s name as security for revenue

collected for prepaid home service warranty contracts by
Service America. A minimum of 10% of the required
balance must be deposited directly with the State of
Florida. The amount of the deposits is. calculated
quarterly and equals 25% of total service contract
revenue represented by service contracts in force at the
end of the quarter. As.the amount of the required deposit
increases or decréases, cdsh is transferred to or from
unrestricted cash to the segregated statutory déposit
accounts on the consolidated balance sheet.

Other Investments

At December 31, 2003, other investments, all of which
are classified as available-for-sale, include a 37% equity
ownership interest in the common stock of privarely held
Vitas Healthcare Corporation (“Vitas”), one common
stock purchase warrant of Vitas, a common stock
purchase warrant in privately held Patient Care, Inc.

_ (“Patient Care™), a former subsidiary of the Company,

e

and the redeemable preferred stock of privately held
Medic One, Inc. (“Medic One”).

At December 31, 2002, other investments, all of which
are_classified as available-for-sale, inciude the redeemable-
preferred stock of Vitas, three common stock purchase
warrants of Vitas, a common stock purchase watrant in
Patient Care, the redeemable preferred stock of Medic
One and several publicly traded common stocks.

Equity investments that are publicly traded are:
recorded at their fair value-with unrealized gains and .
losses, net of taxes, included in other. comprehensive
income on the balance sheet. The Company’s equity
investment in the common stock of Vitas and other

privately held investments are carried at cost, subject to

write-down for impairment. The Company’s equity
investment in Vitas is accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. ‘ .
~ All investments are reviewed perlodlcally for
impairment based on available market and financial data.
For its investment in Vitas, the Company reviews Vitas’
unaudited monthly operating data and audited annual
financial statements on a timely basis. In addition, the
Company’s treasurer sits on the Vitas Board of Directors.
If the market value or net realizable value of the
investment is less than the Company’s cost and this .
decline is determined to be other than temporary, a
write-down to fair value is made, and a realized loss is
recorded in the statement of operations. _

In calculating realized gains and losses on the sales of
invéstments, the specific-identification method is used to
determine the cost of investments sold.

Depreciation and Properties and Equipment

Depreciation of properties and equipment is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets. Expenditures for maintenance, repairs,




Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

renewals and betterments that do not materially prolong Guarantees
the useful lives of the assets are expensed as incurred. - In the normal course of business the Company enters
The cost of property retired or sold and the related _ into various guarantees and indemnifications in its.
accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts, relationships with customers and others. Examples of
~_and the resultlng gam or loss is reflected currently in. . .. _these arrangements include guarantees_of service and——— —
~income. . Co . product performance. _Thech_)mpa_nysexpemence
The welghted average hves of the Company s gross » indicates guarantees and indemnifications do not
properties and equipment at December 31, 2003, were: materially impact the Company’s ﬁnanc1al condition or
Life  results of operations.
Computer equipment 2.3 yrs. Operating Expenses
Machinery and equipment 6.3 Cost of services provided and goods sold. (excluding
Furniture and fixtures . 3.0 deprec1at10n) includes salaries, wages and benefits of
i o . ' service technicians and field personnel, material costs,
. Transportation equipment 5.9
‘ insurance costs, service vehicle costs and other expenses
Computer software - 7.5 directly related. to providing service revenues or

Buildings ' 234 generating sales. General and administrative expenses

c N ‘ include salaries, wages and benefits of administrative
employees, office rent and operating costs, legal, banking
and professional fees and other administrative costs.
Selling and marketing expenses, inclade salanes, wages
and benefits of selling and marketing employees,
advertising expenses_,, communications and branch
telephone expenses and other selling and customer-related

~ Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets arise from purchase.
business combinations and are amortized using the
straight-line method over the estirmated useful lives of the
assets. In accordance with Financial Accounting .
Standards Board (“FASB”) Statement No. 142, Goodwill
and Other Intangible Assets, amortization of goodwill .

v : expenses.
ceased effective December 31, 2001. Beginning January
1, 2002, goodwill is tested at least annually for . Advertising )
impairment. For 2001 and earlier years, goodwill = - - The Company expenses the productlon costs of
acquired prior to July 1, 2001, was amortized using the advertising the first time the advertising takes place.
straight-line method over the estimated useful life; but - Costs of yellow pages listings are expensed when the
not in excess of 40 years. The weighted average lives of directories are placed in circulation. Other advertising
the Company’s gross identifiable 1ntang1ble assets at ' costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense for
December 31, 2003 were: 7 the year ended December 31, 2003, was-$17,087,000

v Life‘ (2002 — $17,520,000; 2001 — $18 362 000)

Covenants not to compete ' 5.0 yrs. Dividend Income ' ‘

Customer lists 12.7 - Dividends on redeemable preferred stock investments
’ are cumulative and are recorded during the quarter they
are earned. All other dwtdends are recognized when
declared.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically makes an estimation and
valuation of the future benefits of its long-lived assets _ . e
(other than goodwill) based on key financial indicators. f  ¢omputation of Earnings Per Share

the projected undiscounted cash flows of a major Earnings per share are computed using the weighted

business unit indicate that property and equipment or average number of shares of capltal stock outstanding.

identifiable intangible assets have been impaired, a write- Diluted earnings per share reflect the dilutive impact of
- down to fair value is made. : the Company’s outstanding stock options and nonvested

stock awards. Diluted earnings per share also assume the
conversion of the Preferred Securities into capital stock
only when the impact is dilutive on earnings per share.
from continuing operations.

Revenue Recognition .

~ Revenues received under prepaid contractual service
agreements are recognized on a stra1ght line basis over
the life of the contract. All other service revenues and
sales are recognized when the services are provided or the

i del J Employee Stock Ownership Plans
products are delivered.

Contributions to the Company’s Employee Stock
Ownership Plans (“ESOP”) are based on:established debt
repayment schedules. Shares are allocated to participants
based on the principal and interest payments made. ..



Roto- Rooter Inc. and Subsxdlary Compames

during the périod. The Company’s policy is to record its -
ESOP expense by applying the transition rule under the
level-principal-A-amortization concept. - ’

Stock Based Compensatlon Plans . :

The Company uses Accounting Pr1nc1ples Board
Opinion No. 25-(“APB 25”), Accounting for Stock -
Issued to Employees, to account for stock-based .
compensation. Since the Company’s stock options qualify -
as fixed options under APB 25-and since the option price*
equals the market price on the date of grant, there is no
- compensation cost tecorded -for-stock- options: Restricted -
stock was recorded as compensation cost over-the
requisite vesting .periods on a prorata basis, based on-the
market value on the date of grant.
 The following table illustrates.the effect on net loss

and loss per share if the Company had applied the fair-
value-recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123,
Accounting for Stock-Based- Compensanon {in thousands,
except per share data) ; o

““For the .Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
$(3,435) $(2,545). $(12,185)

Net loss

Add: stock-based
compensatlon expense -
included in-net-income as -- -
- reported, net-of income
tax effects

Deduct: total stock-based -
employee compensation

- determined under-a fair-
value-based method . for

~‘all stock options and

- awards, net of income.

tax effects ('9“52)“‘ ‘ t767) (4,444)

$(4,292) $(3,192) $(12,516)

Pro forma net loss

Loss per share -

(35) §

Company’s stock options granted in 2003 and prior
years. Key assumptions include:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002
 Weighted average grant-date T
fair value of options granted $10.14. $11.18.
Risk-free interest rate - 3.2% 4.8%"
- Expected volatility 27.8 251
Expected life of options - 6 yrs. 6 yrs.

No options weré granted in 2001 however for 2002 and
2003, it was assumed that the annual dividend would be
increased $.01 per share per quarter biannually in the
fourth quarter. This assumption was based on the facts
and circumstances that-existed at the time options were -
granted and should not be construed to ‘be an indication
of future dividend amounts to be paid.

Insurance Accruals
The Company: is self- 1nsured for casualty insurance

_clalms, subject to a stop-loss policy with a maximum per-

occurrence limit of $250,000. Management consults with
insurance professionals and closely monitors and

_evaluates its historical claims experience to estimate the
- appropriate level of accrual for incurred claims. |

‘-"EstlmateSH s

The. preparation of ﬁnanc1al statements in conformity

 with accounting pr1nc1ples ‘generally accepted in the

United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptlons that affect amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual

‘results could dlffer from those estlmates

_ Reclassrflcatlons

In April 2002, the FASB approved the issuance of

- Statement of Fmancral Accounting Standards (“SFAS”)

No. 145, Resc1551on of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and
64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical
Corrections., It is generally effective for transactions

“occurring after May 15, 2002. The Company’s adoption

of SFAS No. 145 in 2003 resulted in reclassifying its
2001 loss on early extmgmshment of debt from

: extraordmary t0'a separate line within contmumg

- As reported $ (.26) § (1.25)
Pro forma " ' $ (43) § (.32) $ (1.29)
Dlluted loss. per share ‘;V o _ .
~ As reported % (35§ (26) §. (1.25)
Pro forma - S (43 5 (32) $

" The above‘pro forma data were calculated,fusrng the -
Black-Scholes option-valuation method to-value the

(1.29)

operations, but did not otherwise have a materlal impact
on its financial statements. =

In May 2003, the FASB approved the issuance of SFAS
No. 150, Accountmg for Certain Financial Instruments

. with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. As a -
- result of the issuance of this pronouncenient, the

Company now reports the mandatorlly redeemable
convertible. preferred securities of the Chemed Capital

Trust as a noncurrent liability rather than in the

“mezzanine” (i.e., between liabilities and equity) as
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reported prior to June 2003. This reclassification does
not affect the Company’s compliance with its debt
covenants. The adoption of this statement did not impact
the statement of operations.

For 2003 and 2002, the Company reclassified its
noncurrent income tai(es from income taxes payable
(within current liabilities) to other liabilities (within
noncurrent liabilities). In addition, certain -other amounts
in prior years’ financial statements have been reclassified
to conform to the,2003 presentation.

Recent Accounting Statements
In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation
(“FIN”*) No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest
Entities — an interpretation of Accounting Research:
Bulletin‘No. 51. This Interpretation is intended to clarlfy
the application of the majority voting interest
requirement-of ARB No. 51, Consolidated Financial
Statements, to certain entities in which equity investors
do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial -
interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk-for the
entity to finance its activities ' without additional-
‘subordinated financial support from other parties. The
controlling financial interest may be achieved through
arrangements that do not involve voting interests. FIN
No. 46 may be applied prospectively with a' cumulative-
effect adjustment as of the date on which it is-first
applied or by restating previously issued financial

will apply FIN No. 46R to all variablé interést entities at
the end of-'the first quarter of 2004.

The Company has evaluated its contractual -
relationships with its Roto-Rooter franchisees and- has

- concluded that its interests in the franchisees are not-

variable interests as defiried in FIIN No. 46 and FIN

- No. 46R. The Company maintains contractual

relationships with certain independent contractors to

-provide plumbing and drain cleaning services in'specified

territories primarily using the Roto-Rooter name. The .

"Company has no equity interest in any of the

independent ‘contractors, but in many cases, loans money
to the contractor to assist in financing equipment and -~
working capital needs. The loans are generally partially
secured by the contractors’ equipment and are-
guaranteed by the business owner. The Company s -
contractor agreements do mot require its contractors to
provide all the financial information necessary to apply
the provisions of FIN No. 46R to-its contractors.
Furthermore, the contractors generally have not provided

-all the financial data they are required to provide under

the contractor agreements.
The Company has evaliated its contractual
relationships with the four independent contractors that

‘commenced operations in*2003. (“2003 Contractors”)

statements for one or more years with a cumulative-effect .

adjustment ‘as_of the beginning-of the first year restated.

"FIN No. 46 is efféctive immediately to variable interests =

in a variable intereést entity (“VIE”) ¢reated or obtained

after January 31, 2003. As amended by FASB Staff .
Position (“FSP”).FIN'46-6, FIN No. 46 became effective
for variable interests in'a VIE created before February 1,
2003, at the end of the first interim or annual perlod
ending after December 15,.2003.

Subsequent to issuing FIN No. 46 and FSP FIN
No. 46-6, the FASB contmued O propose modifications
and issue FSPs that changed and clarified 'FIN No. 46.”
These modifications and FSPs were subsequently
1ncorp0rated into FIN No. 46 (revised) (“FIN
No. 46R”), which replaces FIN No. 46. Among other
things, relative to FIN No. 46, FIN No. 46R a)
essentially excludes operating businesses from its’
provisions subject to four conditions, b) states the
provisions of FIN No. 46R aré not required’to be
applied if a company is unable, subject to making an
exhaustive effort, to obtain the necessary information, c)
includes new definitions and examples of what variable -
interests are, d) clarifies and changes the definition of a

~ variable interest entity, and'e) clarifies and changes the

definition and treatment of de facto agents, as that term
is défined in FIN No. 46 and FIN No. 46R. FIN
No. 46R was issued December 23, 2003. The Company

and determined they are potentially subject to -
consolidation under FIN No. 46 as a result of loans -
made to them. The Company has been unable to obtain
sufficient information necessary to determine whether the
2003 Contractors should be consolidated. The Company
is in the process of evaluating the néw provisions of FIN
No. 46R relative to its 2003 Contractofs and to ‘ts pre-
February 2003 contractor arrangements. At this time, the
Company does not believe that the consolidation of any
of its contractors, if required under FIN No. 46 or FIN
No. 46R, would. materially impact its operating results.

" Instead, consolidation of some, if any, of these

arrangements is more likely to result in a “grossing up”
of amounts such as revenues and expenses with little or,

_ no net change to the Company’s net income or cash
‘flows. None of these entities has been consolidated in the

Company’s financial statements.
Under FIN No. 46, the Company is permxtted to
consolidate the accounts of the Chemed Capital Trust in-

.its financial statements due to the existence bf a call

-10-

feature of the Preferred Securities whereby the Company
can call the Preferred Securities for prepayment. The
Company currently intends to call the Preferred Securities
after March 15, 2004, at.which time the Preferred
Securities may be prepaid without premium.

When FIN No. 46R becomes fully effective for the
Company in the first quarter of 2004, the Company will
be required to-de-consolidate the accounts of the Chemed
Capital Trust, because the call feature may no longer be
considered as a condition for consolidation. As a result,
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- the current balance sheet caption that reads

" Amierica Network Inc. (“Service America’) provides

“Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred securities .

of the Chemed Capital Trust” will be revised to read
“Convertible junior_subordinated debentures in the
same-dollar amount as the Preferred Securities. Within
the statement of operatlons the “Distributions on,
:preferred securmes > will be reclassified a_s mte,rest_‘: . .
expense. o o

2.'Segments and Nature of the Business
. During the second-quarter of 2003, the corporate- -
office administrative functions for employee benefits,
‘retirement services, tisk management public relations,
~ cash management and taxation were combined with the .-
Plumbing-and Drain Cléaning business to enable.the-.
‘Company t0 benefit’froin ecoriomies of scale: In-
May 2003, the shareholders of the Company approved
changing the corporation’s name from Chemed..
Corporation to Roto-Rooter, Inc. (“Roto- Rooter B Due
to these changes and the changing composition-of .
" businesses comprising the:Company over the past-several
‘years, management re-evaluated the Company’s segment’
reportmg as it relates to corporate- -office administrative
expenses. The dtscontmuance of businesses in 1997 [the
Omnia Group (“Omnia”) and National Sanitary Suppl
Company (“National”)], 2001 [Cadre Computer
Resources, Inc. (“Cadre Computer”)}-and 2002 (Patlent
Cire) results in -more:than 80% of the Company’s ~
business being represented by Roto-Rooter’s Plumbing .
and Drain Cleaning business. ; SO

To. better reflect how executive management evaluates
its operatlons the costs of the administrative. functlons of
the corporate office were combined with the operating .-
results of the Plumbing and Drain Cleamng business
(formerly the Roto-Rooter Group) to form the Plumbirig
and Diain Cleaning segment, effective in the second
quarter of 2003.. The Service America segment remains
essentially unchanged. -

The Plumbing and Drain Cleaning segment provides
plumbing and draining cleaning services, and Service

major-appliance and- heatingfair-conditioning (“HVAC”) ¢ »

" repair, maintenance and replacement services. Relative

contributions' of each segment to service revenues and
sales were 84% and 16%, respectively, in 2003.
The reportable segments have been defined along, .

-service lines, consistent with the way the businesses ‘are”

managed In determmmg reportable segments, the
Roto-Rooter Services, Roto-Rooter Franchising- and .
Products and"Roto-Rooter HVAC and non-Roto- Rooter

-brand operating segments of the Plumbing and Drain’

Cleanmg segment have been aggregated on the basis of
possessing similar operating and financial characteristics.
The ¢haracteristics ‘of these operating segments-and the
basis for aggregation are reviewed annually. Accordingly,

the reportable segments.are defined as follows

e The Plumbmg and Dram Cleaning segmefiit provides
repair and maintenance services to residential and
commercial accounts-using the Roto-Rooter service
mark. Such services include plumbing and sewer;

» drain and pipe cleamng They are delivered through

-~ -company-owned, mdependent—contractor operated

"and franchised locations. This segmerit also

manufactures and sells products and equlpment used

‘to provide such services.

- The Service America segment pr0v1des HVAC repalr,

- _maintenance and- replacement services primarily to

residential customers through service contracts and
retail sales (dernand services). In-addition, Serv1ce
“America sells air condmonmg equlpment and duct
cleaning sefvices. B
~Substantially all of:the Company’s service revenues-and

'_sales from continuing operations are’ ‘gerierdted from”

business within. the United States. Management closely

monitors accounts receivable balances and has established

" policies regarding the extenswn of credit and comphance

' therew1th

-11-
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Segment data for the Company’s continuing operations

Revenues by Typé of Service -
Plumbing and Drain Cleaning
Sewer and drain cleaning

Plumbing repair and- maintenance

Industrial ‘and' municipal sewer
., and drain cleaning -
Contractors .

HVAC repau' “and maintenance
Other products and services

Total Plumbing and Drain
Cleaning

Service America-

Repair services under contracts )

Demand repair services =
“ Total Service America

Total service revenues and . -

| $308,871 $314,176 _$

’ sales

. Aftertax Segmént Eammgs/(Loss)
Plumbing and Drain Cleaning'®
Serv1ce America™

“Total segment loss
Unallocated mvestmg ‘and °
. financing — net’® . :
Loss on extmgunshment of debt.
Discontinued operations

‘ Net loss

¥
Interest Income

Plumbing and Drain Cleanmg
Service Amerlca i

~ Subtotal )

Unallocated investing and
financing — net;” L

Intercompany eliminations'.

Total interest income

" Interest Expense -
-Plumbing and Drain Cleanmg
Service America

Subtotal
Unallocated investing and
financing — net
Intercompany eliminations

" “Total interest expense

~ are set forth below (in thousands, except footnote data)

.. For the Years Ended.

.December. 31,. -+ - - .

2003 r-

2001 ..

2002
$106,127 $106,125 $109,250
101,590 ° 98,812 105,803
15,876 14,660' 14,526
14,125 12,350 11,873
3,044 3,746 9,859
20,013 17,994 . 18,042
260,775 253,687 269,353
36,384 45,182 51,299
1,712 15,307 17,256
48,096 60,489 . 68,555

337,908

§ 6528 § 9,796. $ .(8,765)

(14,687) * (19,961) (686)

(8,159)  (10,165) © (9,451)

4,660 0 © 1,311 414

- . {1,701)

64 6309 (1,447)

8 (3435) § (2’545) $(12,185)

8 817\.$ 549§ 243

1294 . 413 799

T 1,111 . 962 1,042

2,187 T 2,644 - 2,010

. (581) . (298)  (180)

.$ 2,717 $ 3,308 § 2,872
§- 210§ 153§ 223

34 59 s

244 212 " 223

1,896 2,716 5,614

— — (414)

$ 2,140 § 2,928 § 5,423

-{a) Amount for 2003 includes aftertax severance charges of
$2,358,000. Amount for 2001 includes aftertax restructuring and
similar expenses and other-charges totaling $15,271,000.

“(b)

Amounts for 2003 and 2002 include aftertax impairment charges |

apgregating $14,363,000 and $20;342,000, respectively. Amount

for 2001 includes aftertax restructurmg and similar expenses and

other charges of $1,672,000.
(c)

Amount for 2002 mcludes a $780,000 aftertax investment

impairment chaige. Amounts for 2003, 2002 and 2001 include
aftertax capital gains on the sales and redemption of investments of
$3,351,000, $775,000 and $703,000, respectively.

For the Years Ended

~BPecember-33;--

L L 2003

© 2001 -

amorttzatlon

2002
Income Tax I;royision - _‘ o ) .
Plumbing and Drain Cleaning =~ § 4,645 § 6,535 § (3,380)
Service America - {1,431) 418 437
Subtotal ConoL et o3214 0 6953 (2,943)
Unallocated investing and T T v
ﬁnancmg——net S -t 1,535 (502) _ (2,04s)
Total mcome tax provxsxon ' $ (4,749 § 6451 § (4,.989)
Idermﬁable Assets . - Lo ) o
Plumbing and Drain Cleamng $172,380 $166,308. $174,083
Service America ‘ 25,655 . 49,729 71,399
" Total'identifiable <as§ét$ ' 198,035 © 216,037 245,482
Unallocated investing and = e ) Do
_financing — net'¥ 131,034, 122,107 74,665
Discontinued operations = — 81,310
' Total assets $329,069  $338,144 $401,457
Addmons to Long—leed Assets' - A ‘ ' »
Plumbing-and rDram‘Cleamng '$ 12,610 § 9,433 § 10,892
Service America 797 . 3414 4,696
. Subtotal . 13,407 - 12,847 15,588
Unallocated mvestmg and . e . )
ﬁnancmg—net‘ ) ) ’ 1,621 184 424
Total addmons $ 115,028 § 13,031 § 16,012
Depreciation and Amomzatlonm R S . »
Plumbing and Drain Cleanmg "§ 9,388 § 10,214 § 14,128
Service Amerlca : . S 2,965 3,633 4,951
" Subtotal’, CUL 12,353 13847 19,079
Unallocated 1nvesnng and B :
ﬁnancmg—net‘ r 456 509 2,194
Total deprec1at10n and : i o '
$ 12,809 $ 14,356 § 21,273

investments.

{d) Cdrporate assets consist primarily of- cash and cash equivalents,
marketable securities, propertles and equipment and other

(e} Long-lived assets include goodwdl 1dent1ﬁable intangible assets and

‘property and equipment.

(f} Depreciation and amortization include amortization of goodw111
_identifiable 1ntang1ble assets and other assets.

-12-
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3: Equity Interest in Affiliate (Vitas)
"~ At Decémber 31, 2003; the-Company held @ 37% -
interest in privately held Vitas, which provides palliative
and medical care and relafed services to terminally ill -
patients. On: August 18, 2003, Vitas retired the *

Company’s invéstment in the 9% Redeemable Preferred -

Stock of Vitas. Cash proceeds to the Company totaled
$27.3 million; and the Company realized a pretax gain of
$1,846,000°($1,200,000 aftertax or $.12 per share) on
the redemiption of preferred stock in the third quarter of
2003. During 2003, the dividends and amortization of
preferred stock discount on this investiment contributed
$1,585,000 to the aftertax earnings of the-Company. -
Dividends ceased ' td accrue on August 17,-2003. On
October 14, 2003, the Company exercised two of its
three warrants (Warrants A and B) to purchase
4,158,000 common shares of thas or 37%, for

Summarlzed ﬁnancxal data for Vltas follow (in thousands):

Income Statement

Revenues

Gross profit

Income from. operations . -

Net income- X
" Net income available for common stockholders
* Financial Position

Current assets

Noncurrent assets .

" Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
‘Redeemable preferred stock

Stockholders eqmty/(deﬁc1t)

4, Intang:ble Assets -
Amortization of 1ntang1ble assets from contmumg
- operanons was (in thousands)

" For the Years‘ Ended -

B December 31,

» 12003 2002 2001
Identlﬁable mtanglble assets - §560 $621 - $ 680
Goodwill L : —_ E— 4,102

| : ©$560 -$621 -

Total :

$4,782

$18:0 million in cash. At December 31, 2_003, the
. Comipany’s common stock ownership in Vitas has a

carrying value of $21.0 million, and the Company’s’ = -
investment exceeded its share of Vitas’ net book value by
approximately $16.6 million. On a preliminary basis, the
Company estimates that $3.7-million of this excess is
attributable to the excess value of computer software
with a 5-year life and the remainder to goodwill with an
indefinite life. Amortization of this excéss reduced the

. Company’s equity in the“earnings of Vitas by $97,000 in

2003. In 2004; as a result of completing the acquisition
‘of the 63% of Vitas it did not own'in 2003, the
Company will conduct a thorough review to value all
assets and liabilities of Vitas at their fair values. Thus, it
is possible that the Company may identify other B
mtanglble assets w1th d1fferent useful hves .

As of and -
for the Three
Months Ended
December 31,

.. As of and for the
Years Ended ‘September 30,

2003 -2003 2002 - 2001
$121,062 $420,074 © $359,200- - $319,517
27,515 188,254 77,841 69,973
10,727, 32,022 28,019 23,814
C5,396 13,689 13,789 12,311
5,396 5678 9,727 6,112 -
$ 79,619. _$ 69,891 § 51,780
. 63,746 62,660 59,687
62,963 - 54,046 46,881 ..
68,553 90,053 59,006
e —_ 22,006

11,849 (11,548) - (16,426)

The following is-a schedule by yeér of projected
amortization expense for 1ntang1ble assets (m thousands)

2004 - .. 8116
2005 o 88
2006 LT3
20077 54

2008 50
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The changes in the cartying amount. of goodwill for
the years ended December 315.2002. and 2003, are as ;.
follows (i__rlg_t:housandvs): AT T TR

- and Drain’* Service = < -t
S __Eleaning * * Amierica. - Total- -
December 31, 2001 '$100,023 § 30,379 §1 30,402
Acquired in business .. L A '

. e

1,110

chmbina,t»ionsti,«_, 1,110 — 1,110
Impairment losses , .., w1 (20,342) 0 (20,342)
Other adjustments - ., Sl 327) e — (327)

December 31, 2002°* 100,806~ 10,037 110,843
Acquired in business. ¢ o

combinations = . " 4246 L — 4,246
Impairment losses ~~ (10,037) - (10,037)
Other adjustments 283 — 283

December 31, 2003 $105,335 § — §105,335

During the fouith quarter of 2003, the Company‘ S ;

recognized a $10,037;000-impairment loss on the’s > -
goodwill (fourth quarter of 2002 — $20,342,000) *--
included in the Service America segment. The goodwill
impairment.charges are based on an:appraisal firm’s . :
valuation of Service America’s business as of - o
December 31, 2003 and 2002.'T‘};e fair value of Scr;/ice
America was calculated using an average of the enterprise
value determined under a capital tharkets valuation and
discounted cash flows using updatéd income and cash
flow projections for Service America’s business. The |
capital markets méthod calculates an enterprise value -
based on valuations at which comparable businessés sold
in the capital markets and based on certain financiat
ratios and statistics. The incomé arid cash flow. = -
projections are updated each year as a part of the
Company’s annual business plan process and take into
consideration the changing marketplace and changing
operating conditions. The decline in the overall
valuations of Service America in 2003 and 2002 were a
direct result of lower revenue, earnings and cash flow
projections due to the continued-decline in the contract
base of the business (23% decline in 2003; 19% decline
.n 2002). These projections were adjusted to feflect that
Service America missed achieving its budgeted revenues
by $6.0 million, or 11%, in 2003 ($8.7 million, or 13%,
for 2002) and missed achieving its budgeted, gross margin
by $2.8 million, or 19%, for 2003 ($4.5 million or 26%
for 2002). '
As required by SFAS No. 142, the Company performed
goodwill impairment tests for all of its reporting units as
~of December 31, 2003 and 2002. These tests indicated
that none of the reporting units” goodwill, other than
Service America’s, is impaired.

-14-

~In cbnju‘nction \vivi._th;the adoption of SFAS No., 142, the
Company performed.its transition:evaluation of goodwill
as of January 1,.2002. For the purpose of impairment , .

 testing, the Company: determined -its reporting .

components-to- be Service America, Roto-Rooter Services

~ (plumbing-and drain cleaning services), Roto-Rooter

Franchising and Products (franchising and. manufacturing.
and sale of. plumbing and drain cleaning products) and
Roto-Rooter HVAC/non-Roto-Rooter brands (heating,
ventilating, and-air-conditioning repair services and non-
Roto-Rooter-branded plumbing and- drain cleaning
services). The Company’s transition impairment tests,
based .on-valuations by a-professional valuation firm, - ‘

indicated that none of the:goodwill for any of its

reporting components was.impaired at January. 1, ZOQ;Je, ,
During 2001, the Company recognized-a $10,580,000,
impairment loss under FASB Statement No. 121,.

_ Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and
“for Long-Lived Assets'to Be Disposed Of. Most of this

amount (§9,793,000) relates to goodwill included on the
books of Plumbing and Drain Cleaning’s HVAC and
non-Roto-Rooter—branded-plumbing operations. As the
Company had committed to exit these underperforming
businesses in November 2001, the amount of the ‘
impairment was based on the estimated: selling price of
the operations to be sold or dissolved. The remaining
$787,000 impairment loss relates to the closing of Service
America’s Tucson branch. These charges are included in
the restructuring-and-similar-expenses account in the
statement of operations. .

The loss for 2001 excluding the amortization of
goodwill is presented below (in thousands):

Reported loss from continuing -

. $(10.738)

operations ‘
Aftertax amortization of goodwil] - 4,621

Adjusted loss $ (6,117)

' Réport‘ed net loss

- $(12,185) -
Aftertax amortization of goodwill - 4,621

Adjusted-ne loss < - $ (7,564)

In 'é?:id'i’tjo‘ri{ﬁo»‘-thq-goodwill impairment charges
discussed above, the:Service America segment recognized

5. Impairment,’ Restructuring and Similar Expenses

- asset impairment-charges in 2003 under FASB Staternent

No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of
Long-Lived Assets, ‘comprising $4,052,000 for property
and equipment ( primarily capitalized software) and <" -
$1,739,000 for identifiable intangible assets (primarily

.. customer contracts). :

The property and equipment and identifiable intangible
asset impairment charges for 2003 are based on an
analysis of undiscounted cash flows that indicated that
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the book value of the net assets of Servicé America
---exceeded-the projected cash flows of the business over _
* the life of the noncurrent assets. Accordingly, the

~carrying values of the.noncurrent assets that exceeded
their fair values were w,;ltten down to their fair Values,
based largely on a fecent appraisal of assets by a
‘professional valuation firm. Substantially all of the
property and equipment impairment charge related to
computer software costs. The large majority of the
identifiable intangible asset charge related to capitalized
customer contracts, acquired in 1991 and 1993, -which,
in the opinion of management, have no future value.

Total impairment charges recognized by Service .
America.in the fourth quarters of 2003 and 2002 are (in
thousands): '

‘ 2003 2002
Goodwill $10,037 $20,342°
Identifiable intangible assets 1,739 =
Prop’erties' and equipment —

‘ (priﬁqarﬂy capitalized software) 4,052 —
Tota] $15, 82‘8 $20,342

The aftertax cost of these 1rnpa1rment charges was
$14, 363 ,000 in 2003 and $20, 342,000 in 2002.

In the third quarter of 2001, the Company decided to
close Service America’s Tucson branch, which was
acquired in 1999, due to its operating performance. The
branch failed to achieve the level of proﬁtablhty that had
been anticipated upon acquisition. :

- In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company decided to

_exit the HVAC and. non-Roto- Rooter branded plumbmg

businesses by selling them or closing them or transferring
their operations to Roto-Rooter branchies. The decision -
to dispose of these operations was made because they
failed to improve profitability in recent years and were
requiring the use of resources which management -
believed could be better used elsewhere in the Plumbmg
and Drain Cleaning segment.

In the third quarter of 2002, management decided to
retain the largest of the HVAC and non-Roto-Rooter-

‘branded plumbing businesses, as it remained profitable

throughout the period and the majority of its revenue

“was from plumbing operations. Additionally,
management determined there was sufficient synergism

between this non-Roto-Rooter-branded operation and the
nearby Roto-Rooter branch to justify retaining it. The

" decision to retain this busmess did not have a material

-impact on the results of operat1ons for 2002 and would

not have materxally changed the restructuring charges
recorded in 2001 for the cost of exiting HVAC and non-
Roto-Rooter-branded businesses..

The closing of Service America’s Tucson branch was
completed in 2001, and the restructuring of
Roto-Rooter’s HVAC and non-branded plumbing
businesses was completed in the third quarter of 2002.
Since most of the restructuring expenses arose from

" noncash asset impairment charges, the restructuring plans

-15-

did not consume a significant amount of the Company’s
resources.
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Durmg 2001, the Company’s continuing operations recorded pretax. restructurmg and similar- expenses and other-

nonrecurring and unusual charges as follows {in thousands except footnotes)

Plumbmg T
-~ and Drain . -~ Service -~ = - - oo
S R _',ﬁ.__ __Cleanlng,__" A,rnenca. o Totaleso T
Restructurmg expenses: PR o s T T T
_Cost of exiting HVAC and non- Roto Rooter-branded plumbmg L T
businesses®® : : . ~$11,205 v —  $11,205
Cost of closing Service: Arnerlca s Tucson branch ) Lo — L7 AT
Expenses not expected to recur (srmllar expenses);: - ; : S o
Charges for acceleratmg the vesting of restricted stock awards in
-connection with the ant1c1pated revision of the Company $ long- : ‘ SR
term incentive plans in 2002 . ; S 5294 - 146 5 440
Severance charges for 10 individuals incurred in connection with :
reducing administrative expenses; largely at the corporate office'®” . 2,909 . 757 3 666
Resolution of overtime pay issues with the U.S. Department of Labor o
(“DOL”), relatmg prlmanly to’ prior years™ compensatlon expense( g 2,749 — 2,749
Property and eqmpment 1mpalrment charges ﬂ 7 ‘ ' 337 166 - © 503
Total restructuring and- sunllar expenses S 22494 2,240 24,734 :
Other unusual charges: S S : - ‘
" Additional casualty insurance expense recorded - R . ‘
to refléct increase in valuation of insurance clatms for pr1or years . 1,{}11(3’ — o L4t
~Terminated lease obligations - ‘ ‘ . , - 166 69® ... 235
Al other ‘ ' : C 4170 - 4149 . 831
Total' restructuring and 31mllar expenses and other , R - )
unusual charges : o © . $24,488 - $2,723 $27 211

-(a) Amount 1ncludes a charge of $9,793,000 for the reduction in the carrymg value of goodw1ll and $477 000 for the réduction in the carrylng value

b

(c)

of identifiable intangible assets.

Y Amount includes a charge of $833,000 for the reduction in the carrying value of goodwxll and $50,000 for the reduction in the carrying value of

identifiable intangible assets. :

In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Board of Directors of the Company approved accelerating tl\e vesting of all outstanding restricted stock

awards as a result of its decision to terminate this long-term incentive program. In May 2002, the shareholders of the Company approved the

adoption of the 2002 Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan to replace the restricted stock award program (see Note 19). Stock award expense is

. typlcally classified as general and administrative expénse in the statement of . -operations. This charge is included in the “restructuring and similar
expense” category because this type of expense is not expected to recur in the foreseeable future, The accrual balance related to these charges
was nil at December 31, 2002 ($1,177,000 at December 31, 2001).

) These charges are included in the “restructuring and smnlar expense” category as the charges relate primarily to personnel who are not expected
to be replaced. Severance expense is typically classified as general and administrative expense in the statement of operations, The accrual balance
related to these charges totaled $3,489,000 at December 31, 2002 ($3,666,000 at December 31, 2001). .

) This charge represents the cost of the nationwide settlement between Roto-Rooter and the DOL for wages and benefits of prior periods. The
charge is included in the “restructuring and similar expense” category as it is not expected to recur in the foreseeable future. Wages and related
benefits are typically classified as cost of services provided and goods sold in the statement of operations. The accrual balance related to this
charge totaled nil at December 31, 2002 ($250,000 at December 31, 2001).

(f) The fixed asset impairment charges are included in the “restructuring and 51mrlar expense > category because they are not expected to recur in the

g

foreseeable future. The deprecratlon of property and equipment is typically mcluded in a separate line (deprecmtlon) in the statement of

operations.
) Amounts are included in cost of services provided and goods solcl in the consolldated statement of operarions.

(h) Amounts are included in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of operations. = - -

-16-
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These costs were charged to the following accounts in the
consolidated statement of operatlons in 2001 (in-
thousands): '

Cost of se_rv1ces prov1ded and goods

sold $ 2,027
"General and ad‘minist’rative' ' o
. expenses. . . 450

~ Impairment, restructuring and ' .

similar expenses ‘ 24,734

Total $27,211

The combmed aftertax 1mpact of the restructuring and
similar-expenses and other charges for 2001 was
$16,943,000- ($1.74 per share).

During 2002; the Company decided to retain several of
Plumbing and Drain Cleaning’s non-branded plumbing
and HVAC businesses. In the aggregate, the retained
operations generated $16,162,000 of net revenues and
$241,000 of operating profit in 2002. For 2003, these
businesses have been assimilated into the Plumbmg and
Drain Cléaning segment.

The operating results for businesses divested within the
. lumbing and Drain. Cleaning and Service America . .
segments as a part of the restructuring in 2001 were (
thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2002 2001
Service revenues and- sales
Non-Roto-Rooter- branded I
“businesses : $403 ©  $e, 275"
 Service América’s Tuc"So‘n branch — 1,664
Operating loss: ‘
Non-Roto-Rooter-branded .
businesses (106) (754)
Service America’s Tucson branch . —

" (430)

-17-

Accruals related to restructuring charges recorded in
2001 are summarized below {in thousands):

Cost of exiting HVAC and non-Roto-Rooter-

branded plumbing businesses $ 11,205
Cost of closing Service America’s Tucson

branch 1,171

Total restructuring expenses for 2001 | 12,376
Less: noncash charge for reduction in

carrying value of goodwill (10,626)
Less: noncash charge for reduction in

carrying value of identifiable intangible -

‘assets o - (527)
Less: noncash charge for property and ’

equipment impairment - (380)
Less: noncash charge for reduction in ‘

carrying value of other tangible assets (288)

Accrual balance at December 31,2001 .. 555

Plus: proceeds from HVAC operation
disposed of in 2002 in excess of adjusted

book value (400)
Less: accrual of additional expenses and -
. exposure on disposal of HVAC operation

in 2002 : 377
Less: cash payments during the year (255)

Accrual balance at December 31, 2002 277

Less: accrual adjustment for property and

equipment impairment (117)
Less: noncash charge for property and '
- equipment impairment (39)
Less:. cash payments during the year (51)

Accrugl balance at December 31, 2003 ~ § 70
Management believes that these accrual balances are
adequate and justifiable as of December 31, 2003."
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" 6. Discontinued, Operations. : . . =+ ...
Discontinued operations comprise (in thousands,
except per share amounts):

. For the Years Ended
December 31,

, 2003 2002 - 2001
Patient Care (2002): :
Income before income taxes $ — - 5,233 262
. Tricome taxes —(2,142) 264
Income from operations, net - )
of income taxes — 3,091 526
Gain on disposal, net of e o
income taxes of $594 — 304 —
Total Patient Care . _— . 3,395 . - 526
Cadre Computer (2001): I
" Loss before income taxes — — 1 (734)
Income tax benefit = = A2545
. Minority interest I — 46
Loss from operatlons, net. ST
of income taxes o — L — (433)
Loss on disposal, net of L
income tax benefit of o S
Total Cadre Computer  — . — (1,973)
Adjustment to accruals of
operations discontinued in .
prior years: - .
-Sublease accrual (1991) . . —  (1,145) (1,700)
Allowance for uncollectible 1
.. notes receivable (2001) 99 477 -
Severance and other ' S
accruals (1997) . — 180 (170)
Gain/(loss) before income
taxes 99 (488) (1,870)
Income tax refund (1997) — 2,861 —
State income tax accrual
(1997) - — 1,700
All other income taxes  (35) 541 170
Total adjustments 64 2,914 —
Total discontinued
operations $64 $6,309 $(1,447)
Earnings/(loss) per share $— & 64 § (15)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per
share $§— §$ 64 § (19)

The $99,000 and $477,000 reductions to the
allowance for uncollectible notes receivable from Cadre
Computer (sold in 2001) are attributable to Cadre

18 .‘:

Computer’s experiencing better than anticipated. financial

results and to the expiration and nonuse.of $350,000 of..
Cadre Computer’s line of credit with the Company. In
anticipation that Cadre Computer would draw down the
full $500,000 line of credit to finance operating losses,
this line of credit had been fully reserved in 2001 when
Cadre.Computer was sold to its employees. The
remainder of the adjustment in 2002 ($127, 000) and
2003 ($99,000) was recorded because Cadre Computer
began making payments on its existing nbtes that
previously were fully reserved.

During 2002, the Company sold Patient Care to an
investor group that included Schroder Ventures Life -
Sciences Group, Oak Invéstment Partners, Prospeet ™= ~
Partners and Salix Ventures. :Patient Care provides home--
healthcare services primarily in the New York-Néw .." "
Jersey-Connecticiit area. The proceeds to the*Company -
from the sale of Patient Care compnsed the followmg (m
thousands) <

_ Cash - $52,500°
" Note receivable 12 500' .
Cash placed in escrow 5, 000- -
Common stock purchase warrant - 1,445
* Purchase price adjustment due to e
- seller 1,251
" Toral $72,696

~ The note receivable is a senior ‘subordinated note
(“Note”) due October 11, 2007, that bears interest at the
annual rate of 7.5% through September 30, 2004, 8.5%

" from October 1, 2004 through September 30, 2005, and

9.5% thereafter. The Note. is presented on a separate line
in the consolidated balance sheet. The $5,000,000 cash
placed in escrow is subject to the collection’ of Patient
Care’s receivables with third paity payers. Of- this
amount, $2,500,000 (included in prepaid expenses and
other current assets in 2002} was distributed as of
October 2003 and $2,500,000 (included in prepaid
expenses and other current assets in 2003 and in other
assets in 2002) is expected to be distributed as of

October 2004. Based on the collection history of Patient
. Care, the Company expects to collect the funds held in

escrow in full. The common stock purchase warrant
permits the Company to purchase up to 2% of Patient
Care. The warrant is recorded at its estimated fair value
on the date acquired and is included in other investments
in the consolidated balance sheet. The final value of the
estimated balance sheet valuation is expected to be
determined in 2004, based on Patient Care’s closing
balance sheet, and could impact the amount of the gain
recorded on the sale of Patient Care.

The adjustments to the sublease accrual ($1,145,000 in
2002 and $1,700,000 in 2001) were made to cover rental
charges for vacant space previously occupied by the
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Company’s former subsidiary, DuBois Chemicals, Inc.
{“DuBois”), sold in 1991. The adjustments made in 2001
moved the dates the floor space was assumed to be sublet
~ further into the futiire, but assumed all-unoccupied space
would be sublet at market rental rates. Although the
Company was able to sublease varying amounts of space
during the past two years, as of December 31, 2003, the
Company was unable to sublease one of the floors
covered under its lease. The adjustments made in 2002
decreased the amount of sublease rentals that were
assumed to be received to include rentals only from
current sublessees. As a result, the sublease accrual will
now cover the cost of all unoccupied space and the
shortfall of current subleased rentals versus lease rental
rates and operating costs.

The $2,861,000 federal income tax refund received in
2002 related to the tax provision recorded as a part of
the sale of Omnia in 1997. As a result of a tax case
settled in 2001, the Company filed an amended 1997
federal income tax return in August 2001 and claimed a
" tax benefit on its loss on the sale of Omnia — a loss
previously treated as nondeductible.

During 2001, the Company discontinued its Cadre
Computer segment and on August 31, 2001, completed
the sale of the business and assets of Cadre Computer to
a company owned by the former Cadre Computer
employees for a note receivable that was fully reserved
on the date of sale. During 2002, Cadre Computer
borrowed an additional $150,000 from the Company
and made principal payments of $31,000 on the first
note. During 2003, Cadre made principal payments of
$96,000 on the first note. As of December 31, 2003, the
Company’s notes receivable from Cadre Computer
totaled $422,000, against which the Company has an
allowance for uncollectible notes totaling $323,000. The
balances in the allowances for uncollectible notes
receivable from Cadre Computer are considered adequate
at December 31, 2003 and 2002.

Revenues generated by discontinued operations
comprise {in thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2002 2001
Patient Care $116,191 $139,208
Cadre Computer — 5,089

Total $116,191 $144,297

The $1,700,000 reduction of the state income tax
accrual in 2001 relates to the tax provision recorded on
the 1997 sale of National. During 2001, the statutes of
limitations on various Company 1997 state returns
expired, with the result being that the Company’s state
income tax accrual exceeded its estimated exposures. The

accrual was reduced and credited to the income tax
provision in 2001.

At December 31, 2003, other current habilities include
accruals of $3,731,000 and other liabilities include
accruals of $3,142,000 for costs related to discontinued
operations. The estimated timing of payments of these
liabilities, relating primarily to sublease and
environmental liabilities, follows (in thousands):

2004 $3,731
2005 1,791
2006 731
2007 200
2008 200
After 2008 220

Total $6,873

The Company’s chairman, president and chief
executive officer and the former chief administrative
officer (currently a director of the Company) are
directors of Cadre Computer. In addition, the former
chief administrative officer holds a 40% equity
ownership interest in and is chairman and chief executive
officer of Cadre Computer.

7. Business Combinations

During 2003, six purchase business combinations were
completed within the Plumbing and Drain Cleaning
segment for a total of $3.9 million in cash. During 2002,
one purchase business combination was completed within
the Plumbing and Drain Cleaning segment for a purchase
price of $1.2 million in cash. During 2001, two purchase
business combinations were completed within the
Plumbing and Drain Cleaning segment for an aggregate
purchase price of $1.6 million in cash.

All of the aforementioned business combinations
involved operations primarily in the business of providing
plumbing repair and drain cleaning services. The
unaudited pro forma results of operations, assuming.
purchase business combinations completed in 2003, 2002
and 2001 were completed on January 1 of the preceding’
year, are presented below (in thousands, except per share
data): ’

For the Years Ended
December 31,
2002

2003 2001

Service revenues and

sales $310,669 $317,010 $338,714
Net loss (3,298) (2,204}  (12,057)
Loss per share and

loss per diluted

share (.33) (.22) {1.24)
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The excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
the net assets acquired in purchase business combinations
is classified as goodwill. A summary of net assets
acquired in purchase business combinations follows (in
thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Working capital $(114) $ 60 $ —
Identifiable intangible assets — 50 90
Goodwill 4246 1,110 1,428
Other assets and
liabilities — net (282) 16 37
Total net assets $3,850 $1,236 $1,555

All of the goodwill related to business combinations
completed in 2003, 2002 and 2001 is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes. Since these
transactions occurred after June 30, 2001, the related
goodwill is not being amortized. The weighted average
lives of the identifiable intangible assets acquired in 2002
and 2001 are 7.0 years and 6.1 years, respectively.

8. Other Income — Net
Other income — net from continuing operations
comprises the following (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Interest income $ 2,717 §$3,308 $2,872
Dividend income 1,540 2,461 2,548
Market value gains/(losses)

on trading investments of - ,

emplpyee benefit trusts 1,600 (1,401)  (820)
Investment impairment ‘ ,

charge 4 — (1,200 -
Gains on sales and

redemption of

investments 5,390 1,141 993
Other — net 12 (27) (606)

Total other income —net $11,259 § 4,282 $4,987

9. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes comprises the

following (in thousands):

Continuing Oberationsz
Current
U.S. federal

U.S. state and local .

Foreign
Deferred

U.S. federal

Foreign

Total

Discontinued Operations:

Current U.S. federal

Current U.S. state and
local

Deferred U.S. federal
Total

-20-

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
$3,818 $ 3,938 $ 1,196
1,179 1,913 59
253 141 (71)
(485) 475  (6,139)

(16) (16) (34)

$4,749 $6,451 $(4,989)

$ (649) $(2,954) $(4,242)

— 794 (1,454)
684 1,494 2,478

$ 35 § (666) $(3,218)
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A summary of the significant temporary differences for
continuing operations that give rise to deferred income
tax assets/(liabilities) follows (in thousands): =

December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred compensation $ 7,015 $ 6,117
Accrued insurance expense 6,091 5,987
Accruals related to dlscontmued . ‘ ‘ ’
operations 2,872 3,556
Severance payments 1,779 1,380
Allowances for uncollectible : -
accounts receivable 1,052 1,184
Accrued state taxes . 974 1,047
— Market-valuation of investments... 475 . —
Amortization of intangibles — 314
Other 2463 2,527
Gross deferred income-tax assets -22,721 22,112
Accelerated tax depreciation (2,631) * (4,388)
Investment basis difference (2,050) (248)
Amortization of intangibles . {619) —
Market valuation of investments - — (960)
Other (1,776) . (2,096)
Gross deferred income tax o
liabilities {(7,076) (7,692) .

Net deferred income tax assets $15,645 $14,420

Included in other assets at December 31, 2003, are
deferred income tax assets of $5,589,000 (December 31,
2002 — $4,526,000). Based on the Company’s history of
prior operating earnings and its expectations for future
growth, management has determined that the operating
income of the Company will, more likely than not, be
sufficient to ensure the full realization of the deferred
income tax assets. The difference between the actual
income tax provision/(benefit) for continuing operations
and the income tax provision/{benefit) calculated at the

statutory U.S. federal tax rate is explained as follows (in
thousands): 5

- For the Years Ended -
December 31,
2002 2001 °

2003

Income tax :
provision/(beneﬁt)
calculated using the .
statutory rate of 35% $ 115

Nondeductible goodwill
impairment charge
Nondeductible
intangibles impairment _. L
charge 562 - =
State and local income
taxes, less federal )
income tax effect T 767

$ (841) $(5',504)'

3513 7120 . —

1,243 . 39

Domestic dividend
exclusion

Unfavorable/(favorable)
federal adjustments 103

Foreign income taxes,
less federal income tax
effect 26 (85)
Nondeductible ‘ ‘
amortization of ‘ ‘ ,
goodwill - = 1,203
Other — net . 104 14 (81)

Actual income tax
provision/(benefif)

(441~) (686) (706)

(314) 337

(277)

$(4,989)
31.7%

§ 4749 $6,451
1,447.9% (268.5)%

Effective tax rate

Income tax benefits attributable to the exercise of non-
qualified employee stock options were $960,000 during
the year ended December 31, 2003 (2002 — $122,000; _
2001 — $219,000) and were credlted dlrectly to
additional paid-:in capital. :

Income taxes included in the components of other’
comprehensive loss are as follows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

L 2003 2002 2001
Unrealized holding gains/(losses) $ (180) $132 $905
Reclassification adjustment (2,039) (366) (290)

Summarized below are the total amounts of income
taxes paid/(refunded) during the years ended
December 31 (in thousands):

2003 $2,715
2002 (910)
2001 5,772
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10. Cash Equivalents

Included in cash and cash equivalents at December 31,
2003, are cash equivalents in the amount of $49,356,000
(2002 — $37,075,000). The cash equivalents at both
dates consist of investments in various money market
funds and repurchase agreements yielding interest at a

weighted average rate of .9% in 2003 and 1.1% in 2002.

From time to time throughout the year, the Company
invests its excess cash in repurchase agreements directly
with major commercial banks. The Company does not
physically hold the collateral, but the term of such
repurchase agreements is less than 10 days. Investments
of significant amounts are spread among a number of -
banks, and the amounts invested in each bank are varied
constantly. :

11. Propérties and Equipment }
A summary of properties and equipment follows (in

thousands): . . . . . ... _ . . connection with-acquisitions-of various busmesses md

December 31,

2003 2002
Land $ 2,238 $ 2,538
Buildings 16,423 18,310
Transportation equipment 22,061 26,185
Machinery and equipment 36,281 34,440
Computer software 6,947 4,327
Furniture and fixtures 19,700 18,354
Projects under construction — 6,577

-Total properties and equipment 103,650 110,731
Less accumulated depreciation (62,646) (62,370)

Net properties and equipment § 41,004 $ 48,361

12. Long-Term Debt and Lines of Credit
A summary of the Company’s long-term debt follows
(in thousands):

December 31,

2003 2002
Senior notes, due 2005-2009 $25,000 $25,000
Other : 1,379 1,012
Subtotal 26,379 26,012
Less: current portion (448) (409)
Long-term debt, less current '

portion _ $25,931 $25,603

Lines of Credit
The Company had approximately $51,357,000 of

unused short-term lines of credit with various banks at
December 31, 2003.

Senior Notes

In March 1997, the Company borrowed $25,000,000
from several insurance companies. Principal is repayable
in five annual installments of $5,000,000 beginning on
March 15, 2005, and bears interest at the rate of 7.31%
per annum. Interest is payable on March 15 and
September 15 of each year.

On December 31, 2001, the Company prepaxd the
outstanding balances of its 8.15% senior notes due 2002
through 2004 and its 10.67% senior notes due in 2002
and 2003. The principal balances outstanding at the time
of prepayment were $30,000,000 and $2,000,000,
respectively. Pretax penalties incurred on these
prepayments aggregated $2,617,000 ($1,701,000 aftertax
or $.18 per share) and are presented as a loss on - -
extinguishment of debt in the statement of operations.

Other
Other long-term. debt has arisen from loans in -

properties. Interest rates range from 7.3% to 8.0%, and
the obligations are due on various dates through
December 2010. -

The following is a schedule by year of required long-
term debt payments as of December 31, 2003 {in

thousands):

2004 $ 448

2005 5,190

2006 5,200

2007 5,210

2008 5,162

After 2008 o 5,169
Total long-term debt- $26,379

Summarized below are the total amounts of interest
paid during the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2003 $3,197
2002 3,979
2001 7,007

No interest was capitalized during the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,

New Credit Agreements

On February 24, 2004, in conjunction with the
Company’s acquisition of the Vitas shares not previously
owned, the Company retired its senior notes due 2005
through 2009 and cancelled its revolving credit
agreement with Bank One, N.A. (“Bank One”’). To fund
this acquisition, the Company issued 2 million shares of
capital stock in a private placement and borrowed
$335 million as follows:

* $75 million drawn down under a $135 million

secured revolving credit/term loan facility (“New

22-
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Credit Facility”) with Bank One. The facility

comprises a $35 million term loan and $100 million

“revolving credit facility, including up to $40 mllhon
in letters of credit. For the term loan, principal

- payments of $1,250,000 plus.interest (LIBOR plus .

3.50%) are due quarterly beginning in May 2004.
For the revolving line of credit, interest payments
" (LIBOR plus 3. 25%) are due quarterly beginning in

May 2004. Payment of unpaid: principal and interest

is due February 2009,

~+ $110 million from the issuande of privately placed

- floating rate senior secured notes (‘“‘Floating Rate -

Notes”) due 2010. Interest payments (LIBOR: pluS"

3.75%) are due quarterly beginning in May 2004,
and payment of unpaid. pr1nc1pal and interest is due
-February 2010.

mergers and dissolutions, -
sales of assets,. - - -
investments and acquisitions,
liens,

. transactions- with affiliates,

‘hedging and other financial contracts

restrictions on subsidiaries,
contingent obligations,
operating leases,”
guarantors,

‘ collateral,

sale and leaseback transactlons,

prepayments of indebtedness, and

maximum annual capital expenditures of $20 million
subject to one-year carry- forwards on amounts not
used during the previous vear.

In addition, the credit agreements prowde that the
Company will be required to meet the following financial
" covenants, to be tested quarterly, beginning-with the -
_quarter endmg June 30, 2004: -

* a minimum net worth requirement, whrch requires a
- net worth of at least (i) $232 million p.lus (i1) 50% -
of consolidated net income (if positive) beginning
with the quarter ending June 30, 2004, plus (iii) the
net cash proceeds from issuance of the Company’s
capital 'stock. or the capital stock of the Compan} s
subsidiaries;

a maximum leverage ratio, calculated quarterly,
based upon. the ratio of consolidated funded debt to
consolidated EBITDA, which will require

¢ $150 million from the issuance of privately placed
8.75% senior notes (“‘Fixed Rate Notes”) due 2011.
Quarterly interest payments are due beginning in
May 2004 and payment of unpaid.principal and
_interest is due February 2011.

In addition, the Company anticipates drawmg clown
approximately $26 million of letters of credit under the
New Credit Facility in-March 2004. After these
borrowings and letters of credit, the Company will have
$34 million of unused lines of credit under the New
Credit Facility. Combined payments for.the New Credit
Facility, the Floating Rate-Notes and the Fixed Rate .
" Notes are summarized as follows (in thousands):

2004 $ 3730 , maintenance of a ratio of 5.5 to 1.00 through
2_005 B o S’QOO : - December 31, 2004, a ratio of 4.75 to 1.00 from -
2006 .- ST 5,000 " January 1 through December 31, 2005, and 4.25 to
.. 2007 5,000 - 1.00 thereafter;
2008 - 5,000 * 3 maximum senior leverage ratio, calculated
2009 and later - . 311,250 - quarterly, based upon the ratio of senior
- T consolidated funded debt to consolidated EBITDA
Total $335,000 (which ratio excludes indebtedness in respect of the

Fixed Rate Notes), which will require maintenance
" of a ratio of 3.375 to 1.00 through December 31,
2004, a ratio of 2.875 to 1.00 from January 1
through December 31, 2005, and. 2.625 to 1. 00
thereafter; and
* a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, based upon-
the ratio of consolidated EBITDA minus capital -
© -expenditures-to. consolidated interest expense plus
- consolidated current maturities (including cap1tallzed
lease obligations) plus cash dividends paid on equity
securities- plus expenses for taxes, which will require
- maintenance of a ratio of 1.15 to 1.00 through
‘December. 31, 2004, 1.375 to 1.00 from January 1
" through December .31, 2005, and 1.50 to 1.00°
thereafter.

Collectively, the New Credit Facility, the Floating Rate
Notes and the Fixed Rate Notes provide for affirmative
and resttictive covenants including, without limitation, -
requirements or restr1ct10ns (sub]ect to exceptions) related
to the following:

* use of. _proceeds of loans,

»..restricted payments, including_payments of d1v1dends '
and retirement of stock (permitting $.48 per share
dividends so long as the aggregate amount of |
_.». dividends in any fiscal year does not exceed
- ..$7.0 rn1lhon and providing for additional principal
prepayments to the extent dividends exceed
$5.0 million in any fiscal year), with exceptions for
_ existing employee benefit plans and-stock option
~plans, . .
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13. Other Liabilities :
At December 31, 2003, other current liabilities
comprised the following (in thousands): -

December 31,

2003 2002
Accrued incentive compensation $ 4,140 $ 3,738
Accrued divestiture expenses 3,731 - 3,661
Accrued savings and retirement ‘ o
contribution 3,338 3,642
Accrued advertising 1,103 3,195
Other 8,811 9,277

‘Total other current liabilities -$21,123 - $23,513

Other liabilities at December 31, 2003, included income
tax liabilities totaling $10,215,000 (2002 — $9,194,000).
At December 31, 2003, the Company’s accrual for its

estimated liability for potential environmental cleanup
and related costs arising from the sale of DuBois:
amounted t0-$2,070,000. Of this balance, $870,000 is-
included in other liabilities and $1,200,000 is included in
other current liabilities. The Company is contingently
liable for additional DuBois-related environmental
cleanup and related costs up to a maximum of _
$18,036,000. On the basis of a continuing evaluation of
the Company’s potential liability, management believes it
is not probable this additional liability will be paid.
Accordingly, no provision for this contingent:liability has
been recorded. The potential lability is not.insured, and
the recorded liability does not assume the recovery of
insurance proceeds. Also, the environmental liability has -
not been discounted because it is not possible to reliably
project the timing of payments. It is currently expected
that approximately $1,200,000 of the liability: will be
paid out in 2004; the timing of .the remainder of the
payments is not currently estimable. Management
believes that any adjustments to its recorded liability will
not materially adversely affect its financial position or
results of operations. : -

At December 31, 2003, the Company’s accrual for
losses on subleases of office space formerly occupied by
DuBois amounted to $2,847,000 (2002 — $4,017,000),
of which, $1,200,000 (2002 — $1,200,000) is included in
other current liabilities. The accrual is based on the
-expectation that space currently unoccupied will not be
sublet during the remainder of the lease term, which ends
April 2006. : S s

Net proceeds/(uses) of cash from discontinued
operations in the statement of cash flows represent the
net proceeds from the sale of Patient Care in 2002 and
the payment of severance, lease and other liabilities - -
relating to operations disposed of in 1991, 1997 and
2001. - :

14. Pension and Retirement Plans

Retirement obligations under various plans cover
substantially all full-time employees who meet age and/or
service eligibility requirements. The major plans
providing retirément benefits to the Company’s

~employees. are defined contribution plans.

The Company has established two ESOPs that
purchased a total of $56,000,000 of the Company’s
capital stock. In December 1997, the Company
restructured the ESOP loans and internally financed
$16,201,000 of the $21,766,000 ESOP loans outstanding
at December 31, 1997. : , , .

Substantially -all eligible employees of the Plumbing
and Drain Cleaning segment participate in the ESOPs;
Eligible employees of the Company are also covered by
other defined contribution plans. . ‘

Expenses charged to continuing operations for the .
Company’s pension and profit-sharing plans, ESOPs,
excess benefit plans and .other similar plans comprise* the
following (in thousands): ' o

* For the Years End‘ed'
December 31,

, 2003 2002 2001
Compensation cost of ESOPs  §1,138 $1,746 $2,144
Pension, profit-sharing and :
other similar plans 3,837 3,312 3,934
Total ' $4,975 $5,058 $6,078
Dividends on ESOP shares o
used for debt service § 138 § 197 $§ 280

+ At December 31, 2003, there were 227,346 allocated
shares (2002 — 212,712 shares) and 52,212 unallocated
shares (2002 — 83,653 shares) in the ESOP trusts. =

The Company has excess benefit plans for key
employees whose participation in the qualified plansis
limited by ERISA rules. Benefits are determined based on
theoretical participation in the qualified ESOPs. Prior to
September 1, 1998, the value of these benefits was
invested in shares of theé Company’s stock and in mutual
funds, which were held by grantor trusts. Currently,
benefits are invested in only mutual funds, and
participants are not permitted to diversify accumulated
benefits invested in shares of the Company’s stock. Trust
assets invested in shares of the Company’s capital stock
are included intreasury stock, and the corresponding
liability is included in a separate component of ‘
shareholders’ equity. At December 31, 2003, these.trusts

held 67,174 shares or $2,328,000 of the Company’s
stock (December 31, 2002 — 66,141 shares or -

$2,290,000). The diversified assets of the Corﬁpany’s
excess benefit and deferred compensation plans, all of
which are invested in various mutual funds, totaled

. $17,743,000 at December 31, 2QO3 (December 31, e
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2002-—$15,176,000); and-are 1ncluded in other -assets.
The corresponding liabilities are included in other
liabilities. -

15 Lease Arrangements

 The Company, as lessee, has operating leases that
cover its corporate office headquarters, various
warehouse and office facilities, office eqmpment ‘and
transportation’ equipment. The remaining terms’ ‘of these
leases range from one year to 15 years, and-in most
cases, management expects that these leases ‘'will be -
renewed or replaced by other leases in the normal course
of business. Substantlally all equxpment is owned by the
Company. =- 7. - : :

The followmg is.a summary .of future minimum rental
payments and sublease rentals to-be received under
operating leases:that-have initial or remaining.
noncancellable terms:in excess:of ‘one year at -

- December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

2004 $ 6,064
- 2005 15,532
2006 2,570
2007 792
2008 , 21
After 2008 ' o 205
.. Total minimum rental payments 15,184
Less minimum sublease rentals (3,526)
Net minimum rental payments $11,658

. Total rental expense incurred under operating leases
for continuing operations follows (in thousands):

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Total rental payments $6,371 $6,037 $6,716
Less: sublease rentals (1,602) (1,196) (929

Net rental expense $4,769 §$ 4,841 $5,787

16. Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating the fair value of each class of the Company’s
financial instruments:

* For cash and cash equlvalents accounts recelvable, 7
statutory deposits and accounts payable, the carrying
amount is a reasonable estimate of fair value because
of the liquidity and short-term nature of these
instruments.

)
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‘o For- other-investments-and. other assefs,: fair-value is

based upon quoted market prices for these qr similar

-securities, if available. Included in other investments,

below, is the Company’s investment in privately held

- Vitas; which provides- palliative and medical care and
. relatéd services to terminally:ill patients. In

- connection with Vitas” refinancing its debt

" *obligations in" April 2001, the' Company and Vitas

agreed to extend the maturity of the Vitas 9% -
Cumulative Preferred Stock (“Preferred’)-to-April -1,
2007. In addition, Vitas issued a Common Stock .

Purchase Warrant (*“Warrant C”) to the Company
for:approximately 1,636,000 common shares and
_extended the expiration dates of the Company’s
‘other Vitas' Common Stock Purchase Warrants 3
- {“Other Warrants”) t6-December 31, 2007. Warrant

C was recorded at its estimated fair value of . .
$2,601,000,.and at the same time, a discount of ..
$2,601,000 to the Preferred was recorded. The

. appraised value of-the- Other Warrants was, estlmated

to be $4,048,000 in 2001 (versus a carrying value of

"$1,500,000). THe value of the Preferred for 2002

was based on the present value of the mandatory
redemption payments, using an interest rate: of -~

. 9.0%, a rare which management believes is' - :.

reasonable in view of risk factors attendant to the
mvestment

- On August 18, 2003, Vitas retired the Company’s
investment in the 9% Redeemable Preferred,Stock of
Vitas. Cash proceeds to the Company totaled
$27,270,000, and the Company realized a pretax

“gain of $1,846;000 ($1,200,000 aftertax or $.12 per

..share) onthe ‘réaemption On October 14, 2003, the
Company exercised two of its three warrants :
(Warrants A and B) to purchase 4,158,000 comrnon
shares of Vitas for $18.0 million in cash. At
December 31, 2003, the Company’s common’ stock
ownership in Vitas had a carrying value of ‘
$21.0 million. The estimated fair value of the
Company’s common stock ownership and Warrant C

- at Decemiber 31, 2003, assumes a $30 share price

based on the Company’s offer to purchase Vitas
common stock.

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt is
estimated by discounting the future cash outlays
associated with each debt instrument using interest
rates currently available to the Company for debt .

" issues with similar terms and remaining maturities.

The fair value of the Mandatorily Redeemable

‘Convertible Preferred Securities of the Chemed

Capital Trust (“Preferred Securities™) is based on the
quoted market value at the end of the period.
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The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial .
instruments are as follows (in thousands, except

- The chart below summarizes information with- respect
to available-for-sale securities sold during the perlod (m
thousands):

For the Years Endedv
.December 31,
2003 2002

2001

Proceeds from redemptlon ‘

and sales. $31,763 $1,917 $1,377
7457 1223 1,112

1,767 82 119

Gross reahzed gains
Gross realized losses

17. Diluted Loss Per Share -
Due to the Company’s losses from continuing
operations.in 2003, 2002 and 2001, all potentially

dilutive securities were antidilutive for these years.~ -

“Therefore, the- diluted losses per share were the samié-as

- footnote)
. December 31
2003 ’ 2002
Carrying . *~ Fair  Carrying Fair
Amount . -Value Amount  Value
Other
investments:
Equity’
investment ;
in Vitas -+ $21,035 "$124,747 § — & —
Othef™ 4,046 41,536 37,326 39,874
Total  $25,081 '$166,283 .$37,326 $39,874
Leng-term ' ' .
debt $26,379 $ 28 307 $26, 012 $28 622
Preferred ' _
"~ Securities’ 14,126 ~ 17,657 14, 186 14,112

(a) Amounts for 2002 include;$27,243,000 myested in the Preferred.

Disclosures regarding the Company’s equity-
investments$ in Vitas and equity securities. classified -as
avallable for-sale are summarized below (in thousands)

December 31

7 , 2003 2002
Aggregate fair value:” j
Equity investment in Vitas $124,747 &  —
Other ’ .  41,536‘ 39,874
Total '$166,283 $39,874
Gross unrealized holding gains ' $ — $.8239
Gross unrealized holding losses —  (1,223)
Amortized cost:
Equity investment in Vitas $ 21,035 & —
Other 4,046 32,858
| '§ 25,081 $32,858

Total

the losses per share in 2003, 2002 and 2001." -

26- -
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Durmg 2003, 2002 and 2001, all’ optlons were excluded from the computation of dlluted loss ‘per share ‘since their.
1mpact on the loss per share was antldllutlve Those optlons comprise the following:

Exercise

Number of Options Outstandmg

, L at December 31,
Grant Date ~ _Price - 2003 2002 _2001
May 2002 $36.90 256,800 265,600 —
May 2003 135.85 1236,138 - — —
May 1999 32.19 7234,577 371,625 429,250
March 1998 39.13 130,700 153,250 155,550
© May 1997 35.94 123,650 152,600 159,413
" May 1996 © 38.75 - 117,625 ¢ 159,275 159,425
February 1995 "33.63" 44,750 67250 68,000
i ‘May 1995~ 7 3249 --13,950- — -0 35,300 . ... 39950 _

* April 1998 40.53 T 12,000 12,000 12,000 -
" March 1994 32,13 2,675 24,825 24,825
February 1992 25.38 - —- 3,050
February 1993- 28.56 — 1,875 6,875
May 1998 37.78 — — 750
*“Total - o 1,172,865 1,243,600 1,059,088

Due to the Company’s loss from continuing operations in 2003, 2002 and 2001, the dilution from the potential
conversion of the Preferred Securities was excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share. During these
periods, the Preferred Securities were convertible into an average of 383,035 shares, 383,686 shares and 392,704

shares of capital stbck respectively.

18. Stock Incentlve Plans
. The Company has eight Stock Incentlve Plans under

which 3,150,000 shares, of Roto-Rooter Capital Stock are
_ . commencing six months after the date of grant. Under
*_the Long- ~Term Incentive Plan, adopted in 1999, up to

1250,000 shares may be issued to employees. who are not
-officers or directors of the Company or its subsidiaries.

issued to key employees pursuant to the grant of stock
awards and/or options to purchase such shares. All
options granted under these plans provide for a purchase
" price equal to the market value of the stock at the date
of grant. The latest plan, covering a total of 450,000
" shares, was adopted in May 2002.
Under the plan adopted in 1983, both nonstatutory
and incentive stock options have been granted. Incentive
stock options granted under the 1983 plan become

exercisable in full six months following the date of grant;

nons‘tatﬁtory options granted under the 1983 plan

become exercisable in four annual installments

"The other plans are not qualified, restricted or

- incentive. stock option plans under the Internal Revenue
Code. Options generally become exercisable six months

following the date of grant in four equal annual

. mstallments
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Data relating torthe- Company s stock 1ssued o employees follow R CoLT LT
B ¢ S A . G

0.3 Number - Weighted = Number Weighted - Number Weighted
- oo cof . Average - of - Average of © Average
‘ o i Shares» -‘v'w-‘,;‘:iIfr‘ice Shares Price.__ _f Shares Price
Stock options: . ot oo RE g IR
Outstanding at January 1 1,24'3,60,0;‘. - $35.50 1,059,088  $34.91 . 1,194,756 $34.62
Granted o rtaat 241,100 03585 268,600 36.90- . .. — —
Exercised VT R (245,184): - ;1 33.10 . (66,738) 31.87: {103,538) 31.74
Forfeited R R e {300)- - .28.56 {17,350) 3476 (25,725) 34,43
Expired e (66,351) 7 38.23 - — —- . (6,405) 34.60
Outstanding at December 31 L 1,172,865 43592 1,243,600 35.50 1,059,088 34.91
Exercisable at December 31~ 860, 187 3579 1,037,771 3523 1 941,149 3525
Stock awards issued © i 4,606~ 3472 9,034 . 3751 | 17073 . 37.73

Options 'outstandin'gl'at December 3'1__, 2003, comprise the following:

iy - R Range of Exercise Prices °

$32.13 t0 $35.94 - $36.90 to $40.53

Options outstandmg """" o S 419,602 753,263
:Average exercise.price of options outstandmg Seouo L $33.450 L - $37.30
Average contractual life- ===+ . 7 7™ ST e 42 yrs. T 7.0 v,
“Options exercisable ¢ ? LT T 419,602 o 440 585
Average exercise price of options exercisable $3345 7T $3350

There were 142,311 shares available for granting of stock options and awards at December 31, 2003;

Total compensatron cost. recognrzed for stock awards for contrnumg operatrons was $147, OOO in 2003
(2002 — $184,000; 2001 — $6, 328 OOO) The expense for 2001 included $4,263,000 resultmg from’ the acceleratron of
vesting of restrlcted stock awards in connection with the restructuring of the Company s long-term’ 1ncent1ve plans, '
efféctive December 31, 2001. Theé shares of capital stock were issued to key employees and dlrectors at no cost and ’
generally Were prevrously restrrcted as to, the transfer of ‘ownership. '

During” 1999 the Company purchased 10135000 shares of its capital stock in open- market transactions and sold these
shares to certain employees at fair matket value in ‘exchange for interest- bearing notes secured-by the shares. Interést
rates on thiese hotes are-set at the beginning of each-year based on rates used by the Internal Revenue Serv1ce for .

demand loans (1.80% for 2003; 2.73% for 2002; 5:88% for 2001)

The notes receivable have no ‘maturity date but become 1mmed1ately due and payable at the optron of the Company
upon the occurrence of any of the following: (a) the Company, as note holder, deems itself insecure, (b) the death,
insolvency, assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the commencement of any bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings
of, or against, the employee, (c) any attempted transfer by the employee of the shares of capital stock purchased by the
employee with the notes, or (d) termination of employment. The terms of the notes receivable place restrictions upon
the sale of the underlying shares of stock, but the shares of stock are not physically restricted from sale. Should the .
Company demand payment of thé notes and the value of the underlying shares be insufficient to satlsfy the remaining
note liability, the employee would be required to pay the Company the difference in cash.
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Activity in the notes receivable accounts, which-are - - -
presented as a reduction of stockholders’ equity in the-
consolidated balance sheet, is summarrzed below (in -
thousands): <

Balance at December 31, 2000 $ 2,886
" Accrual of 1nterest S - 100
B (196)

Cash payments
Value of shares surrendered {1,288)
" Balance at December 31, 2001 71,5027
" Accrual of interest ’ S 2 "
Cash payments, C(239)
Value of shares surrendered (337)
~ Balance at December 31, 2002 952
‘Accrual of 1nterest A f 16
~"Cash payments : {11)
- Value of shares surrendered B <))
~ "Balance at December 31,2003 $ 934 934

Shares surrendered in payment of notes receivable are "7

valued at their fair market value on the date of
surrender. : : -

.19. Executive Long-Term Incentive Ptan
" In May 2002, the sharéholders of the Company-
approved the adoption of the 2002 Executive:Long-Term-
Incentive Plan (“LTIP”) covering officers and-key -
employees of the Company. The LTIP is-administered by
the Compensation/Incentive-Committee (“CIC”)-of the
Board of Directors and was adopted to replace the
restricted stock program, which was terminated ‘at the
end of 2001. Based on guidelines established by the CIC,
the LTIP covers the granting of cash awards based on
two indépendent elements: 1)-a totally discretionary
award based on operating performance of the Company
covering a period greater than one year and less than

four years and 2) an award based on the attainment of a

- target stock price of $50 per share. durmg 10 consecutive
trading days prior to the fourth anniversary of the plan.

As of December 31,2003, no accrual for awards under
the LTIP was made since it was not possible to estimate
the amount of such awards if any, which was earned.

During January 2004 the price of the Company’s
stock exceeded $50 per share for more than 10
consecutive trading days. In February 2004, the CIC
approved a payout under the LTIP in the aggregate
amount of $7.8 million ($2.8 million in cash and 84, 633
shares of capital stock). The pretax- expense of this .
award, including payroll taxes and benefit costs, totaled ~
%941 million ($5 9 million aftertax) and will be recorded’
in the operating results for the first quarter of 2004.

20. Preferred Securities . ‘
Effective February 1, 2000, the Company completed an

Exchange Offer Whereby stockholders exchanged

575,503 shares of capital stock for shares of Preferred -

Securities of the wholly owned Chemed Capital Trust |

{*“CCT”) on a one-for-one basis. The Preferred Securities,
which carry a redemption value of $27.00 per security,
pay an annual cash distribution of $2.00 per security
(payable at the quarterly rate of $.50 per security
commencing March 2000) and are convertible into
capital stock.at a price of $37.00 per security. The
Preferred Securities mature 30 years from-date of -
issuance and are callable beginning March 13, 2003, at a
price of $27.27 for each $27.00 principal amount. On
March 15,2004, and later, the Preferred Securities are
callable without premium. At December 31, 2003, there
were 523,172 shares of the Preferred Securities :
outstanding (December 31, 2002 — 525,401 shares). The
number of Preferred Securities purchased and converted
and shares oficapital stock issued upon conversion are
summarized below: '

‘For the Years Ended

December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Number of Preferred Securities

purchased . ’ — 1,533 13,720

Number of Preferred Securities o

converted 2,229 432 1,200

Shares of capital stock issued
upon conversion-of Preferred .
Securities ' 1,626 = 315 826
The sole assets of the CCT are Junior Subordinated

Debentures (<]SD?") of the Company in the principal

amount of $14,126,000. The. JSD mature March 135,

2030, and the interest rate of the JSD is $2.00 per

annum per $27.00 principal amount. In February 2000,

the Company.-executed an Indenture relating to the JSD,

- an Amended and Restated Declaration of Trust relating
to the Preferred- Securities and a Guarantee Agreement

for the benefit of the holders of the Preferred Securities .
(collectively “Back-up Undertakings”). Considered
together, the-Back-up Undertakings constitute a full and
unconditional guarantee by the Company of the CCT’s
obligations under the Preferred Securities.

The Company; intends to call all of the Preferred
Securities as soon after March 15, 2004, as practicable.
Management anticipates that most of the securities will
be redeemed for capital stock rather than cash. However,
were all the Preferred Securities redeemed for cash, the

- Company would be obligated to pay approximately-

$14.1 mllhon
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21. Loans Recelvable from lndependent
Contractors -

The Plumibing and Drain Cleaning segment o
subcontracts with mdependent contractors to operate
plumbing repair-and drain cleaning businesses in lesser- -
populated areas of the country. At December 31, 2003,
the Company has notes receivable from 37 of its 60
. independent: contractors totaling $2,599,000

{December 31, 2002 — $2,127,000).- In most cases these
loans are partially secured by equipment owned by the
contractor. The interest rates on the loans range from
5% to 8% per annum and the remaining terms of the -
loans range from one month to 7.7 years at

December 31, 2003. During 2003, the Company
recorded revenues of $14,125,000 (2002 — $12,350,000;
2001 — $11,873,000) and pretax profits of $4,356,000
(2002 — $4,866,000; 2001 — $3,980 OOO) from all of its
-indepenident contractors. .

The arrangements give the conttactors the tlght to’”

conduct a plumbing and drain cleaning business using the
Roto-Rooter name in a specified territory in exchange for
a rovalty based on a. percentage of cash labor sales,
. generally approximately 40%. The Company also pays
for yellow pages adverttsmg in these areas and prov1des
© operating manuals to be used as guidelines for operating.
a plumbing and drain cleaning business. The contracts
are generally cancellable upon 90 days’ written notice
(without cause) or upon a few days’ notice (with cause).
The independent contractors are responsible for running
 the businesses.as they believe best:

The Company has four contractors that entered into
independent contractor agreements with the Company
during 2003, subsequent to January 31 (2003
- Contractors”). The Company has loans totaling
" $238,000 receivable from the 2003 Contractors that are
secured by equipment with an estimated value of
$99,000. Information to determine whether ‘the _

- Company’s contractual interests, including the loans -

. receivable, are variable interests that are required to be

. consolidated under FIN No. 46, Consolidation of .
Variable Interest Entities and Interpretation ‘of ARB

No. 51, is not available. Based on an analysis of -
Roto-Rooter’s operating results relative to.these’.
operations, management believes that -consolidation-of
these four businesses would not yield materially different
" results for the Company. During 2003, the Company
recorded $528,000 of service ‘revenues and a combined
operating loss of $3,000 related to the 2003 Contractors.

22. Lttrgatlon

The Company is party to a class action lawsuit filed in
the Third Judicial Circuit Court of Madison' County,
Ilinois, in June of 2000 by Robert Harris, alleging
certain Roto-Rooter plumbing was performed by
unlicensed employees. The Company contests these

allegations-and believes them without merit. Plaintiff -

. moved for certification of ‘& class of customers in 32

states who allegedly paid for plumbing work performed
by unlicensed employees. Plaintiff also moved for a
partial summary judgment-on grounds the licensed
apprentice plumber who installed his faucet did not work
under the direct personal supervision ‘of a licensed master
plumber. On- June 19, 2002, the trial judge certified an
Illinois-only plaintiffs class and granted summary
judgment for the named party Plaintiff on the issue of
liability, finding violation of the Illinois Plumbing License
Act and the Illinois Consiumer Fraud Act, through Roto-
Rooter’s representation of the licensed apprentice as a
plumber:. The court has not yet ruled on certification of a

class in. the remaining 31 states. Due to complex legal

and other issues involved, it is not presently possible to
estimate ‘the amount of llablhty, if any, related to this -
matter.

On Aprll 5, 2002, Michael Lmn, an attorney, filed a

class action complaint against the Company in the Court
-of Common Pleas, Cuyahoga County, Ohio. He alleges

Roto-Rooter Services Company’s miscellaneous parts *
charge, ranging from $4.95 to $12.95 per job, violates
the Ohio Consumer Sales Practices Act. The Company -
contends that this charge, which is included within the
estimate approved by its customers, is a fully disclosed ~

component of its pricing. On February 25, 2003, the trial

court certified-a class of customers who paid the charge
from October 1999 to July 2002. The Company is

* appealing this order and believes the ultimate disposition

of this lawsuit will not have a materlal affect on its |
financial position. S :

However, management cannot prov1de assurance the
Company will ultimately prevail in either of the above-

~ two cases. Regardless of ouitcome, such litigation can

adversely affect the Company through defense costs, -

diversion of management-fs time, and related publicity-

23. Acquasmon of Vntas : )

On December 18, 2003, the Company and Marlin
Merger Corp.,a wholly owned indirect subsidiary
(“Marlin”), entered into a merger agreement with Vitas.
The merger agreement prov1ded for'the merger of Marlin
into Vitas, with Vitas survwmg the merger as an indirect *
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company {the -
“Acquisition”). To secure its interest in the merger, the
Company placed a' $10 million dep051t in escrow
(included in other assets at December 31, 2003). -

In connection with the. completlon of the Acqulsmon
on February 24, 2004, the Company paid to the holders
of the 63% of Vitas comimon stock the Company did not
own consideration of approxnnately $313.9 million. In
addition, the Company paid the former chairman and
chief executive officer of Vitas $25.0 million pursuant to

".a noncompetition and consulting agreement and made -
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severance payments totaling $2.3 million to two other
officers of Vitas. The total purchase price, including
$5.5 million of estimated expenses and the Company’s
$23.6 million previous investment in Vitas, was

$370.3 million. Based on Vitas’ balance sheet at
December 31, 2003, the preliminary allocation of the
purchase price to Vitas® assets and liabilities is estimated
to be (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 25,115
Other current assets 62,557
Property and equipment 22,613
- Consulting agreement 7,000
Covenant not to compete 18,000
Goodwill 361,228
Other assets 6,074
Current liabilities (60,191)
Long-term debt (67,625)
. Other liabilities (4,428)
- Net assets acquired 77370,343
Less: cash and cash equivalents
acquired (25,115)
Net outlay $345,228

As of February 24, 2004, the Company will consolidate
Vitas’ assets and liabilities and begin consolidating Vitas
operating results. ‘ '

" To fund the Acquisition and retire Vitas’ and the
Company’s long-term debt, the Company completed the
following transactions (“Financing”) on February 24,
12004 ‘ - : '
¢ The Company borrowed $75.0 million under a new
$135 million revolving credit/term loan agreement at
an initial weighted average interest rate of 4.50%.
Principal payments of $1.25 million are due
quarterly under the term loan. The term

b

loan/revolving credit agreement matures in five years.

¢ The Company sold 2,000,000 shares of its capital
stock in a private placement at a price of $50 per
share, before expenses.

* The Company issued $110 million principal amount

~of floating rate senior secured notes due 2010 at an

~ initial interest rate of 4.88%.

* The Company issued $150 million principal amount
of 8.75% senior notes due 2011.

* The Company incurred estimated financing
transaction fees and expenses of approximately
$14.5 million.

The unaudited pro forma operating data of the
Company for the year ended December 31, 2003, giving
effect to the Acquisition and Financing as if they had
occurred on January 1, 2003, follow (in thousands):

Service revenues and sales $749,888
Net loss $ (4,070
Net loss per share - § (0.34)
Average shares outstanding 11,924

The Acquisition is being accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting. The fair values of Vitas’
assets and related liabilities are based on preliminary
estimates. Additional analysis will be required to
determine the fair values of Vitas’ assets and liabilities,
including the identification and valuation of intangible
assets acquired. Additional intangible assets acquired may
include customer contracts and related customer.
relationships and other contract-based intangibles such as
lease agreements and service contracts. Should the
Company identify and value additional intangible assets,
everything else being equal, goodwill will be reduced. In
addition, such additional intangible assets may have finite
lives and be subject to amortization. The final allocation
of the Acquisition consideration may result in significant
differences from the preliminary amounts reflected in the
above financial information. '

The unaudited pro forma operating data are for
informational purposes only and do not purport to
represent what the- Company’s results of operations
would actually have been had the Acquisition and the
Financing occurred as of the date indicated, nor does the
unaudited pro forma operating data purport to project
the Company’s results for any future date or any future
period. The unaudited pro forma operating data reflect
pro forma adjustments that are based on available
information and certain assumptions management
believes are reasonable, but are subject to change. Such
adjustments include an increase in the average shares of
capital stock outstanding and in interest expense from
the Financing, elimination of interest expense on existing
debt, elimination of dividend income from Vitas and
reduction of interest income on cash used for the
Acquisition. Management has made, in its opinion, all
adjustments that are necessary to present fairly the pro
forma information.




Unaudited Summary oft

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

Quarteriy Results

{in thousands, except per share and footnote data) .

First - Third  Fourth

|
|

Total

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share. ............. L

(a) Amounts include a pretax charge of $3 627,000 ($2 358, OOO aftertax or $.24 per share) from severance charges in the ﬁrst quarter and for thé

year.

(b) Amounts include a pretax gain of $1 846, OOO (Sl 200 000 aftertax or $.12 per share) from the redemption of Vltas preferred stock in the third |

quarter and for the year.

(c) Amounts include a pretax capital gain of $3, 544 000 ($2 151 OOO aftertax or §. 22 per share) from the sales of mvestmenrs in the first quarter

and for the year.

(d) Amounts include pretax asset impairment charges of $135, 828 000 ($14 363,000 aftertax of $1.44 per share) in' the fourth quarter and for the

year.
(e) Amount represents equlty in earmngs of Vltas

Second,
For the Year Ended December 31, 2003 Quarter  Quarter  Quarter Quarter Year
Continuing Operations o ’ ' o ) ’
Total service revenues and sales. ............ PR 877,645 $77,271 875,172 $ 78,783  $308,871
Gross profit . ............ ST $31,493  $31,660 $30,957 §31,951  $126,061
Income/(loss) from operations(a’d’ ................... $ 2,384 § 3,580 $ 2,367 $(16,051) - '§ (7,720)
Interest expense ............. ...l (539) (599) (487) (515) (2,140)
Distributions on preferred securities ................. (268) (268) (268) - -~ (267) (1,071)
Other income —net™ ... .. . 4,262 2,455 3,049 1,493 11,259
Income/(loss) before income taxes®>% | . 5,839 5,168 4,661  (15,340) 328
Incometaxes ........... . .cviiiiiiiii {2,282) {(1,868) {1,748) 1,149 . (4,749)
Equity in earnings of affiliate’” . .............. ... .. = — — . 922 922
Income/(loss) from continuing operatlons(a bed) L 3,557 3,300 2,913 (13,269) (3,499)
Discontinued Operations ~............. 0.0 0. = - — 64 . 64
Net Incomie/(Loss)®>9 ... ... $ 3;557 .$ 3,300 $2,913 $(13,205) § (3,435)
Earnings Per Share®>>% - - B
Income/(loss) from contmumg operanons ............. $ 36 $ 33 $§ 29 § (133) § {.35)
Net income/(loss) ........ PP SO ... % 36 § .33 29 0§ (1.33) § (.35)
Diluted Earnings Per Share! abed) | ' '
Income/(loss) from cont1r1u1ng operations .......:.... $ 36 § 33 § 29 § (1.33) S {.35)
“Net income/(1oss) ... ..o $ 36 % .33 § 29 § (1.33) $ - (.35)
Average Number of Shares Outstandmg R : - o : .
Earnings/(loss) per share. . ... T 9,890 9,908 - - 9,941 9,954 9,924
e 9,903 9,942 9,988 9 954 9,924
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Unaudited Summary of Quarterly Results

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

{in thousands, except per share and footnote data)

' ' I ‘ First Second Third Fourth Total
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 o Quarter  Quarter  Quarter Quarter Year
Continuing Operations
Total service revenues and sales..................... $80,853 $79,082 $75,322 $ 78,919 $314,176
Gross profit .. ..ooue i $32,345  $32,458 $31,008 $ 32,080 $127,891
Income/(loss) from operations™ .. ................... $ 5,593 $ 6,306 §$ 5370 $(19,947) $ (2,678)
Interest expense ................. e (773) (763) (709) (683) (2,928)
Distributions on preferred securities ................. (270) (271) (268) (270) (1,079)
Other income —net®™ . ...... ... ... .o 2,589 953 268 472 4,282
Income/(loss) before income taxes™® .. ... . ... 7,139 6,225 4,661  (20,428) (2,403)
Income taxes ... .. ... (2,432) (2,370) (1,725) 76 {6,451)
Income/(loss) from continuing operations®® .. ... ... .. 4,707 3,855 2,936 (20,352) (8,854)
Discontinued Operations ............ovirerrrrnnnneeen 867 1,124 3,929 389 6,309
Net Income/(Loss)®Y . .. ... $ 5574 $ 4,979 § 6,865 $(19,963) $ (2,545)
Earnings Per Share®?
Income/(loss) from continuing operations ............ $ 48 § 39 § 30 § (206 § (.90)
Net income/(loss) . ..o $ 57 § 51§ .70 - §(2.02) $§  (26)
Diluted Earnings Per Share®"
Income/(loss) from continuing operations ............ S .48 39 0§ 30 0§ (2060 § (.90
Net income/(loss) ..o § S6 $§ 50 $§ 70 $ (2.02) $ (.26)
Average Number of Shares Qutstanding
Earnings/(loss) per share . .......... ... ... .. .. ... 9,843 9,857 9,861 9,872 9,858
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share .................... 10,267 9,898 9,867 9,872 9,858

(a) Amounts for the fourth quarter and for the year include a pretax and aftertax noncash goodwill impairment charge of $20,342,000 ($2.06 per

share).

(b) Amounts for the first quarter and for the year include pretax gains from the sales of investments of $1,141,000 ($775,000 aftertax or $.08 per
share). Amounts for the fourth quarter and year include pretax investment impairment charges of $1,200,000 {($780,000 afrertax or $.08 per

share).
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Selected Fin‘ancial Data

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Companies

(in thousands, except per share and footnote data, ratios, percentages and personnel)

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Summary of Operations
Continuing operations'® :
Service revenues and sales ............... ... $308,871 $314,176 $337,908 $355,307 $316,719
Gross profit (excluding depreciation) .......... 126,061 127,891 132,292 146,329 127,042
Depreciation ... i 12,054 13,587 14,395 13,374 11,285
Amortization of goodwill ........ ... ... . .. — — 4,102 4,090 3,770
Income/(loss) from operations® ............ .. (7,720) (2,678)  (11,561) 28,548 21,227
Income/(loss) from continuing operations . . . .. (3,499) (8,854) (10,738) 18,030 16,195
Net income/{loss) . .. ... .. .. ... {3,435) (2,545) - - (12,185)- 19,971~ —19,481 ~
Earnings/({loss) per share
Income/(loss) from continuing operations . ... .. $ (.35) % (90y $ (1.11) $ 183 $ 1.55
Net income/(loss) ...t (.35) (.26) (1.25) 2.03 . 1.86
Average number of shares outstanding......... 9,924 9,858 9,714 9,833 10,470
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share
~ Income/(loss) from continuing operations .. .. .. $ (.35) § (90) $ (1.11) $ 1.82 § 1.54
Net income/(loss) ....... ... . ... (.35} (.26) (1.25) 2.01 1.85
Average number of shares outstanding......... 9,924 9,858 9,714 9,927 10,514
Cash dividends per share...... e $ 48 % 45 44§ 40. & 212
Net income/(loss) excluding goodwill amortization®
Net incomef(loss) .............. ... .. ... ... $ (3,435) $§ (2,545} $ (7,564) §$ 24,579 $ 23,789
Earnings/(loss) per share..................... (.33) (.26) (.78) 2.50 2.27
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share .............. (.35) (.26) (.78) 2.48 2.26
Financial Position — Year-End
Cash and cash equivalents ..................... $ 50,587 $ 37,731 § 8,725 $§ 9,978 § 17,043
Working capital ............ ... ... oL 42,993 29,269 19,200 6,911 21,478
CUurrent ratio .. ..oov vttt et et ee e 1.73 1.45 1.23 1.07 1.23
Properties and equipment, at cost less accumulated
depreciation . ........ ..ot $ 41,004 § 48,361 § 54,549 § 60,343 § 56,913
Total assets. ... ... .. 329,069 338,144 401,457 419,932 422,674
Longtermdebt ...................... e 25,931 25,603 61,037 58,391 78,580
Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred
securities of the Chemed Capital Trust......... $ 14,126 § 14,186 § 14,239 § 14,641 § —
Stockholders’ equity . ...... ... 192,693 198,422 204,160 211,451 210,344
Other Statistics — Continuing Operations
Net cash provided by continuing operations . . . ... $ 22,590 $ 26,894 $ 27,123 § 45981 § 28,582
Capital expenditures................iia.. 11,178 11,855 14,457 17,586 16,696
Number of employees(d) ........................ 3,357 3,335 3,764 3,784 3,949
Number of service and sales representatives . ..... 2,529 2,514 2,623 2,586 2,699

(a) Continuing operations exclude Patient Care, discontinued in 2002, and Cadre Computer, discontinued in 2001.
(b) Income/(loss) from operations includes asset impairment charges of $15,828,000 and severance charges of $3,627,000 in 2003, a goodwill
impairment charge of $20,342,000 in 2002 and restructuring and similar expenses and other charges of $27,211,000 in 2001.

(¢

Income/(loss) from continuing operations and net income/(loss) include aftertax asset impairment charges of $14,363,000 in 2003, an aftertax

goodwill impairment charge of $20,342,000 in 2002 and aftertax restructuring and similar expenses and other charges of $16,943,000 and an
aftertax loss on the early extinguishment of debt of $1,701,000 in 2001. Aftertax capital gains on the sales and redemption of investments for
the years 2003 through 1999 amounted to $3,351,000, $775,000, $703,000, $2,261,000 and $2,960,000, respectively. In accordance with FASB
Statement No. 142, amortization of goodwill ceased December 31, 2001. Aftertax amortization of goodwill for continuing operations for the

years 2001 through 1999 was $3,888,000, $3,875,000 and $3,580,000, respectively.

(d) Employee numbers reflect full-time-equivalent employees.

{e) In accordance with FASB Statement No. 142, amortization of goodwill ceased December 31, 2001, Aftertax amortization of goodwill for all
operations for the years 2001 through 1999 was $4,621,000, $4,608,000 and $4,308,000, respectively.
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Management s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operatlons

Roto-Rooter, Inc. and Subsidiary Compames

Financial Condition
Liquidity and Capital Resources »

Significant factorsiaffecting the Company’s -
consolidated cash flows during 2003 and financial
-position at December 31, 2003, include the following:

i+ Continuing operations generated cash of

-+ $22.6 million; : '

¢ Proceeds from the redemptlon of. Vrtas redeemable
o preferred stock totaled $27.3 ‘million; .

. * The Company invested $18.0 million in Vitas’ - =~
© comimon stock (37% ownership interest);: -
- * Capital expenditures totaled $11.2 million; and,,

* The Company placed $10.0 million in escrow to
.. secure 1ts. offer to purchase the shares of Vitas it-did

not own. ‘

The ratio of total debt (excludmg the Preferred
Securities) to total capital was 12.0% at December 31,
2003, as compared with 10.9% at December 31, 2002.

~ The Company’s current ratio at December 31, 2003, was -

1.7 as compared with 1.5 at December 31, 2002.
. The Company had $51.4 million of unused lines of
credit with various banks at December 31, 2003.

Cash Flow
The Company’s ¢ash ﬂows for 2003, 2002 and 2001
-are summarized as follows (in mllhons)

- For the Years Ended -

December 31

e 2003 2002" 2001

---Net-xcash-.p.rovided.vbw',y_ N
- -gperating activities. - -

* Capital expenditures- {11.2) {11. 9) (14.5) :
Operating cash excess after ‘ S L
capital expenditures 114 17.6 199

Proceeds from redemption of = - _ -

Vitas’ -preferred stock L2730 = —
Investment in Vitas’ SR

common stock (18.0). .. — —_
Deposit to secure Vitas S

merger offer- . : (10.0) —_ -
Dividends paid "~ (4.8) (4.4): (44)
Proceeds from sales of avallable- ' .

for-sale securities 4,5 1.9 1.4
Net proceeds/(uses) from sale of ' '

discontinued operations 1.1 5 O 77 (6.3)
Net decrease in long termi"debt. (4 (35.4) (11.4)
~Other—net - s+ e 1.8 (14) . (.5)

3

“Increase/(decrease) in cash and S
cash equivalents - 8129 $29.0 $(1.3)

-For 2003, the operating cash excess after capital
~ expenditures was $11.4 million as compared with -
$17.6 million in 2002 and $19.9 million in 2001. This
- excess, along with the proceeds from the redemption of
Vitas’ preferred stock, was used to purchase 37% of

o .822.6._ $29 5. %34, 4

Vitas common stock,~to place a deposit of $10.0 million
to secure the Company’s merger offer for Vitas’
remaining common stock, to.pay cash dividends and to-
increase the Company’s available cash and cash
equivalents. For. 2002, the operating excess after capital
expenditures and the proceeds from the sale:of Patient -
Care were used to retire funded. debt, to pay cash
dividends-and to-increase the Company’s available cash
and.cash equivalents. For 2001, the opérating cash excess
after capital expenditures was used to fund debt
repayment, pay costs related to discontinued operations
and to: pay-cash d1v1dends

C_ommltments -and Contingencies )
‘In conneetion with- thesale-of. DuBois.Chemicals, Inc.
(“DuBois”) in 1991, the- Company prov1ded allowances
and accruals relating to several long-term costs, including
income tax matters, dease’ commitments and -
environmental costs. Also, in conjunction with the sales
of The Omnia Group. (“Omnia”). and National Sanitary’

Supply Company in 1997 and the sale of Cadre -

Computer Resources, Inc. (“Cadre Computer”) in 200[
the Compary provided long- term allowances and:,
accruals relating to costs of severance arrangements lease
commitmeénts and income tax matters. In the aggregate,
the Company believes these allowances and accruals are

‘adequate as of December 31, 2003.

Based-on reviews of its environmental-related habrhtres

under the DuBois sale agreement, the Company has

estimated its’ remaining liability to be $2.1 million. As of = =
December 31, 2003, the Company .is. contmgently liable _

In connection with the sale of Patrent Care in 2002,
$5.0 million of the cash purchase price was placed in
escrow pending collection of third-party payér receivables

on Patient Care’s.balance sheet at the sale date. Of this

amount, $2.5 million was returned to the Company in.
October 2003. Based on Patient Care’s collectionhistory,
the Company believes that the specified receivables will

" be collected and that the remaining balance of the escrow

funds will be paid to Roto-Rooter, Inc. The remaining
$2.5 million of these escrow funds will be evaluated and '
distributed as of :October 2004. '

The Company’s various loan agreements and

-guarantees of indebtedness as of December 31,2003,
- contained certain restrictive covenants. The Company

was in compliance with all of the covenants-at that time.
Effective with the acquisition of Vitas on February 24,
2004, the Company’s revolving credit agreement with
Bank One, N.A: (“Bank Orie”) was cancelled. In--
addition, the Company retired its $25 million senior
notes due 2005 = 2009 incurring a prepayment penalty
of $3.3 mllhon ‘ ‘

for addmonal cleanup-and-related costs-up to a--- -+ ~en <o
maximum of $18 0 million, for Wthh fdo provision has™
.. been recorded.
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Liquidity and Commitments After the Vitas Acquisition
In connéction with'the acquisition of Vitas-on | .
February 24,2004, the Company entered into a.secured

revolving credit/term 10an facility (“New Credit Facility”’)

with Bank One. The revolving credit facility provides for
borrowings of up to $100 million, including up to .+~
$40 million in letters of .credit. Interest payments for the.

tevolving line of credit are based on LIBOR plus 3.25%. .

The term loan facility provides for a $35 million term’
loan and requires quarterly principal payments. of _
$1,250,000-with interest based on LIBOR plus 3.50%."
All unpaid borrowings under the New Credit Facility, «
along with accrued interest, are due February 24, 2009.
~Initially, the Company drew down $40 million under the
“revolving credit portion of the New Credit Facility and
$35-million under the term loan portion. The Company
* intends to draw down approximately $26 million'of -
- letters of credit under the New Credit Facrlrty in
March 2004.
~ The Company also issued $110 million prmc1pal

(“Floating Rate Notes”) and $150 million of 8.75%
senior notes due 2011 (“Fixed Rate Notes”) in-a private
placement with various -institutional investors.on
February 24,:2004. Iriterest on the Floating Rate Notes is.
computed at LIBOR plus 3.75% and is. payable quarterly
beginning May 15, 2004. Interest payments or the Fixed
Rate Notes are due quarterly beginning May 15, 2004.
No principal payments are due on either the Floating
Rate Notes or the Fixed Rate Notes until their dates of
‘maturity:(February 24, 2010, and February 24,2011,
respectively). - -

As of February 24, 2004, the Company had
$60 million- of available borrowings under the New
Credit Facility. After the anticipated draw down of
approximately $26 million of letters of creditin
March 2004; the' Company will have $34 million in
borrowings.available under the New Credit Facility.

amount of floating rate senior secured notes due 2010‘ o

“The table below summarizes the Company s debt and contractual obhgatlons, giving effect to the transactions

describéd above (in thousands}

Long-.Term . Minimum ,
Debt Preferred Lease Severance. .
- . Payments  Securities ngments Payments Total
- 2004 $ 4,198 ' $ — $12 395 $1,559 $ 18,152
2005 5,190 — 11,237 1,356 17,783
2006 - 5,200 — 7,552 1,356 14,108
2007 - v .02 5,210 — . 4,740 265 10,215
2008 S 5,162 - — 5771 — 10;933.
_ After 2008 - 311 419 - 14,126 205 — - 325,750 o
e -“Total'* i ~$3386, 379'”"7'5’1'4’1'2*767‘——$74“17 900 $4 536 . $396 L 3 et

Collecmvely, ‘the credit agreements prowde that the

" Company will be required to meet the following ﬁnanc1al

covenants, to be tested quarterly, beginning wrth the

quarter enclmg June 30, 2004:~ : 5
.-* a'minimum net worth requirement, Wthl’l requires.a’

- net worth of at least (i) $232 million plus (i) $50%

- of consolidated net income (if positive) beginning
with the quarter ending June 30, 2004, plus (iii) the
net cash proceeds from issuance of the Company’s ™
capital stock or the capltal stock of. the Company s
subsidiaries; - :

a maximum leverage ratio, calculated quarterly,

based upon the ratio of consolidated funded. debt to
consolidated EBITDA, which will require - :
‘maintenance of a ratio of .5:5 to 1.00 through- ‘

- December 31, 2004, a-ratio of 4.75t0:1.00 ffom- -~
January 1 through December .31, 2003, and 4.25t0"

1.00 thereafter; : :

a maximum senior. leverage rat1o, calculated

quarterly, based upon the ratio of senior .

I ——————TEE et

consotidated funded debr to consolidated EBITDA -
(which ratio excludes indebtedness in respect of the
" Fixed Rate Notes), which will require maintenance
of a ratio of 3.375 to 1.00 through December 31,
2004, a ratio of 2.875 to 1.00 from January 1
through Decémber 31,72005, and 2.625 to 1. OO
thereafter; and ‘
a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, based upon
the ratio of consolidated EBITDA minus. capital
_expenditures to consolidated interest expense plus-
consolidated current maturities (including capitalized
lease: obligations) plus cash dividends paid on equity
securities plus expenses for taxes, which will require -
~ maintenance of a ratio of 1.15 to 1.00 through-

" December 31, 2004, 1.375 t0'1.00 from January 1
through December 31,2005, ancl 1.50.t0 1.00
thereafter. -

In addition, the New Credlt Fac1l1ty, the Floatmg Rate

~ Notes and the Fixed Rate Notes- provide for affirmative
and restrictive covenants including, without limitation,
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requirements .or restrictions (subject to exceptions), related
to. the followrng L : '

». use of proceeds. of loans,

_* restricted payments, including payments of dividends
and retirement of stock (permitting $.48 per share -
dividends so long as the aggregate amount of . .
dividends in any fiscal year does not exceed
$7.0 million and providing for. additional pr1nc1pal
__prepayments.to the extent dividends exceed $5.0
mrlhon in any fiscal year), with exceptions for -
existing employee benefit plans and stock opnon
plans, . :

.+ mergers and- dlssolutrons

o sales of assets, ..

* .inyestments and acqulsmons,

- -eJiens,

* ifransactions thh afﬁhates, ‘ . :

" #-hedging and other financial contracts, e
~_restrictions on subsidiaries, ‘

* contingent obligations,

‘e operating leases;-

_* guarantors,
collateral, . :
sale and leaseback transacnons,
prepayments of indebtedness, and
maXimum annual capltal expenditures of $20 million
- subject to one-year carry- forwards of’ amounts not

used during the previous year.
It is'management’s opinion that the Company has no
_long:range commitments that would have 4 significant
impact ‘on.its liquidity, financial condition or-thé results
of its’ operatrons Due to the nature of the environmental
" liabilities, it is-not: possible to forecast the timing. of the
cash payments for these potential liabilities.-Based on the-
Company’s available credit lines, sources of borrowing
and cash and cash equivalents, management believes its
sources of capltal and liquidity are satisfactory’ for ‘the
Company $ néeds for the foreseeable future

lntentlon to Call Convertible Securities v
On March 15, 2004, and thereafter, the outstandlng
mandatonly.redeemable convertible preferred-securities
(“Preferred Securities”) of the Chemed: Capital Trust are
callable without premium :at a price of $27.00 per
Preferred Security: The Preferred Securities are -~ ;..7
convertible into the Company’s capital stock at the ratio.
of.73 share of capital stock per Preferred Security. The

Increase/(Decrease)
2003 vs. 2002 vs.
i : 2002 2001
 Service févenues and sales - R o
Plumbing:and Drain Cleanmg 3% ~(6Y%
Service. America " : {20)- - (12)-
Total:- ! : (2) (7)
Cost of services prov1ded and goods‘ L
sold (excluding depreciation), {2) . (9
.General and administrative expenses 18 (10)-
-Selling and. marketlng expenses L= - {8)

- Depreciation , Ly ey
Impairment, restructurrng and T
similar. expenses : (22) (18)
Loss fiom operatlons © 188 (77)
Interest expense (27) (46)
Distributions on preferred securities - (1) 3)
Loss on' exnngurshment of debt n.a. 100
Other income — net 163 (14)
Loss before.income taxes n.a. (85)
Incomeé taxes _ (26) (229)
Equity in éarnings of afﬁhate ‘n.a. n.a.
Loss from continuing operations 35 (18)

Results of Operattons

Set.forth below. are the year-to-year changes in the ‘
components of the statement of -operations relating to
contlnulng operatlons RE R

o Percent

2003 Versus 2002 — Consolldated Results

The Company’ s service revenues, and sales for 2003
dechned 2% versus revenues for 2002. This $5.3 million
decline.was attributable to the $12.4 million; or:20%,

- declinesin. Service -America’s revenues, partially offset by a

$7.1 million,-or-3%; increase in the Plumbing and Drain
Cleaning segiment’s total revenues.- Within this segment,
plumbing repair and'maintenance revenues increased

© $2.8 million, or 3%, drain’cleaning revenues were ever

Company intends to call all of the Preférred Securities as:

soon-after March: 15; 2004, as practicable.-Managenient :
anticipates that most ofthe securities will bé redeemed”

for capital stock rather than cash. However, were all the-:
Preferred Securities redeemed for cash, the Company %

would be obhgated 1o’ pay approxrmateiy $14 1- mrlhon .

in, cash.
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with the. prior year, ¢onfractor revenues increased

$1.8 million, or 14%, and mdustnal and municipal
revenues increased $1. 2 mllhon, or 8%. Service
America’s revenues from repair services under contracts
declined $8.8 mrlhon, or 19%, and its revenues from
demand repair services declined $3.6 million, or 23%.

Of the iricrease in plumbing revenues, 2.4 percentage
points are attributable to, an increase in the number of -
jobs completed. during the year. The remainder is, :
attributable to-an increase in the average price perjob. -
The drain_cleaning business experienced.-a 2.8% decline -
in.the number of jobs completed: during.2003 and a.3%
increase in the average price per job. The decline in
Plumbing:and Drain Cleaning’s HVAC repair and
maintenance.business was attributable to the Company’s
decision in 2001 to exit this line of business. Units ’
divested in 2002 contributed $403,000 in revenues . _ . ;
during 2002, prior to their divestment. -Of the 14%
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increase in contractor revenues, 5 percentage: points are
" attributable to locations acqulred in 2003. The gross
" margin-of the Plumbing and Drain-Cleaning segment

declined from 44.4% in 2002 to 43.7% in 2003, :

primarily 45 a result of higher training wages in 2003
Thé increase.in- training wages was directly attributable
to"hiring more service technicians in 2003.

The decline in Service America’s service contract’
revenues is attributable to insufficient sales of new service
contracts to.replace service:contracts that were not -
renewed either by Service America or. the customer.
During 2003, :the average number of service contracts
outstanding declined 23% versus the average for 2002.
The year- to-year decline in service contract revenues is
anticipated to continue during 2004 at approx1mately the ,

* same rate as experienced in*2003:

Consolidated cost-of- -serviges provided and goods sold -

. (excludmg depreciation) for 2003 declined 2% versus. .. ..
- such’costs in 2002, primarily due to the dechne in service

revenues and sales. )
General and admlmstratlve (“G&A”) expenses for

2003 increased $9.2 million, or 18%, versus 2002, Wlthln ‘

the followmg operatlons (m mllhons)

B .1$9‘.'o 4

Plumbing and Dram Cleanmg _
Service America - . ¢ e
Total ' o * ,$92. ,

The increase in Plumbmg and Dtain, Cleaning G&CA is’
largely due to incurring severance charges of $3.6 million
in the first quarter of 2003 for'a corporate officer'and to
unfavorable market-value adjustments to the deferred *
compensation liability in 2003 (a $1.6 million charge'to ..
G&A) versus a favorable adjustment in 2002 (a

$1.4 million reduction- in. G&A): These market
ad]ustments are offset entirely by equal, but opposite,
gains and losses on tradmg assets used to fund the
liabilities and included in other income. Higher employee
recruiting costs in 2003 (an increase of $542,000),
related largely to recruiting and hiring service techniciaris
and higher legal fees (an increase of $485,000), due

. primarily fo increased costs of defending against class’

actions, also conmbuted to the higher G&A costs in

- 2003.

Depreciation expense for 2003 declined $1.5 mllhon
or 11%, versus 2002, Of this ‘decline; $905,000 was
attributable to'the decline in deprec1at10n expense in the

‘Plumbing and Drain Cleaning segmient, and the .

remaining $628,000 occurred at Service America. Both-
declines are attributable to reduced capital expenditures -
over the past several years, largely related to service vans.
[mpairment charges for both 2003 and 2002 relate -
entirely to the Service América segment.” As of * ~*
December 31, 2003;all of Service America’s intangibles
have been written down to nil. In addition, Service
America ‘recorded an impairment charge of - '
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approximately $4.0 million to reduce the value of ‘its

internally developed software to its estimated fdir value.
The Company’s loss from operations increased from

$2.7 million in 2002 to $7.7 million in 2003. Operating

expenses for 2003 included severance charges of-

$3.6 million and asset’impairment charges of =

$15.8 million for the write-down of Service America’s -

‘goodwill, identifiable intangible assets and computer
_ software. Operating expenses for 2002 included Service

America’s goodwill impairment charges of $20.3 million.
Also affecting this year-to-year comparison was an
unfavorable market-value adjustment to the deferred
compensation liability in 2003 (a $1.6 million cliarge to
operating expenses) versus a favorable adjustment-in
2002 (a $1.4 million reduction in operdting expenses).
Interest expense, substantially all of-which-is-classified——
as unallocated investing and-financing — net; declined =
from $2.9 million’in 2002 to $2.1. million-in 2003-This - —

_ decline is attributable to lower debt levels and Iower

interest rates in 2003.

Other income.— net increased $6, 977 000. from
$4,282,000 in 2002 to $11,259,000 in 2003, prlmarlly
as a result of the.following (in thousands): .-

Higher gams on the sales and

redemption of investments in 2003~ $4,249
~ 'Gains on trading assets held in '
employee benefit trusts in 2003 :
versus losses recorded in 2002 3,001
All other—— net 273
Total $6,977

Other income — net by segment by reportmg category. is.
summarized below . {in thousands) :

© 2002 ¢

S e 2003
Unallocated lnvestihg and : _
Financing — net . - $ 8,240 $4,602
Plumbing and Drain Cleaning 2,610  (655)
Service America 409 335
Total - $11,259 $4 282

The increase in other income clasmﬁed as unallocated
investing-and financing — net is attributable to the
previously. mentioned increase in gains on sales and
redemption of investments. The increase in the Plumbing
and Drain Cleaning segment’s net other income for 2003
versus 2002 is attributable to gains on trading assets held
in employee benefit trusts in' 2003 versus losses in 2002.
The increase in Service America’s net other income for
2003 versus 2002 is attributable to the gain on the sale

- of a building in 2003."

The Company’s effectlve income tax rate for

_continuing operations.was 1,447.9% in 2003 as

compared with negative 268.5% in 2002. The unusually
high effective rate in. 2003 and the negative effective rate |
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in 2002 were caused by the nondeductlblhty of Serv1ce o
America’s intangibles impairment charges in both years.
For 2003; the Company recorded $922,000 of equity.
in the earnings of Vitas, representing the Company’s ...
~share of Vitas’ earnings since acquiring a 37% [nterest in
the.common ‘stock of Vitas-in-October 2003. .
The loss from continuing operations was $3,499,000
($.35 per share) in 2003 as compared with $8,854,000

($.90 per share) for 2002. Significant items affecting the

* loss from continuing operations for 2003. included
Service America’s aftertax asset impairment charges of -

" $14.4 million ($1 44 per share) and aftertax capital gains -

. on-thesales. and. redemption_of investments. of $3.4___
million ($.34 per share). Unusual items affecting the loss
from continuing operations for 2002 included Service - ,
America’s aftertax goodwill impairment charge of..
$20.3 million ($2.06 per share), an aftertax investment
impairment charge of $780,000 ($.08 per share) and
aftertax capital.gains on the sales of investments of
$775,000 ($.08 per share).
Discontinued operations of $64, OOO for 2003

represented the adjustment of the allowance for ,
uncollectible notes receivable for Cadre Computer. For

share). Significant items eiff_ecﬁgg»the net loss for 2002 - .
include Service America’s aftertax goodwill impairment
charge of $20.3. mllhon ($2.06 per share), an aftertax
investment impairment charge of. $780,000.($.08 per
share) and aftertax capital gains on the sales of .
investments of $775 000 ($ 08 per share)

2003 Versus 2002 — Segment Results :

The aftertax earnings of the Plumbing and Dram
Cleaning segment declined $3,3 million from $9.8 million
in 2002 t0-$6.5 million in 2003 Earnings for 2003. ,
included- an aftertax severance charge of-$2 4 mllhon

The aftertax. loss of the Service America segment

* declined $5.3 million. from $20.0 million in 2002 to _."‘

2002, discontinued operations included $3.4 million from .

the operations of and gain on the sale of Patient Care_-
(sold in 2002), a $2.9 million federal income tax refund
“related to Omnia {sold in 1997), $744,000 additional
~ expense. ($1.1 million before income taxes) for the
sublease related to the 1991 sale of DuBois and other
adjustments aggregating $797,000. The $1.1 million
adjustments to the sublease accrual were made to cover
rental charges for vacant space previously occupied by
the- Company’s former DuBois subsidiary. Ptior to
December 31, 2002, the sublease accrual was calculated
under the assumption that all'of the vacant space would
be subleased at various dates and at market rental rates.
Although the Company was able to sublease varying
amounts of space during the past two years, it has been
unable to sublease one of the floors covered under its -
lease. The adjustments made in 2002 decreased. the
-armount of sublease refitals that were assumed-to be’
received to include rentals only from current sublessees.
As a result, the subleasé accrual now covers the cost of
all unoccupied space, plus the shortfall between current
subleased rentals and contract rental rates and operating
costs. No further charges for this liability are ant1c1pated
The net loss increased from $2.5 million ($.26 per
share) in 2002 to a loss of $3.4 million ($.35 per share)
in 2003. The net losses included income from
discontinued operations of $64,000 in 2003 and .

$14.7 mllhon primarily due to lower impairment charges
in 2003 versus -amounts for 2002. Aftertax asset
impairment charges for 2003 comprised the following (
millions): '

Goodwill L . $10.0-
Property and equipment - 2.7
Identifiable intangible assets 1.7
, Total $14.4

The aftertax goodwill 1mpa1rment charge for 2002 was-

- $20.3 million. As 4 result of these write-downs, the

- the Company’s annual business plan process and take

$6.3 million ($.64 per share) in 2002. Significant items

 affecting the net loss for 2003 included Service America’s
aftertix asset impairment charges of $14.4 million ($1:.44
per share) and aftertax capital gains on the sales and -
redemption of investments of $3.4 million ($.34 per

' 26%, for 2002).
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carrying values of all intangibles for the Service Amerlca
segment have been reduced-to nil. ‘ o
The goodwill impairment charges are based on an -
appraisal firm’s valuation of Service America’s business
as of December 31, 2003 and 2002. The fair value of
Service. America was calculated using an average of the
enterprise value determined under 4 capital markets - - -
valuation and discounted cash flows using updated
income and cash flow- projections for. Service America’s
business.. The capital. markets. method calculates an .
enterprise,value based on valuations at.which comparable
businesses sold in the capiral-markets and based on
certain financial ratios and statistics. The-income and
cash flow projections are updated each-year as a part of

into consideration the changing marketplace and -
changing operating conditions. The declines in the overall
valuation of Service America in 2003 and 2002 were a -
direct result of lower revenue, earnings and cash flow
projections due to the continuing.decline in-the contract
base of the business (23% decline in.2003;.19% .decline
in 2002). These projections ‘were adjusted to reflect that
Service America missed achieving its budgeted revenues
by $6.0 million, or-11%, in 2003. ($8.7 million, or 13%,
for 2002) and missed achlevmg its budgeted gross margin

The property and equipment and identifiable mtanglbl
asset- impairment charges for 2003 are based on an
analysis of undiscounted cash- flows that indicated that




1ncludes unallocated financing costs and investment ¢ -
" income, inereased $3.4 million from $1.3 mitlion. affertaxv

" in 2002 to-$4.7 million aftertax in' 2003.-The increase rs

. attributable to the followirig (1n mllllons)
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. the book valueof the net assets of Servicé ‘America

exceeded the prOJected cash flows of the business”over

. the life ‘of the noneurrent assets: Accordingly, thé-~ .+ *

carrying values of the noncurrent asséts that exceeded 7
their fair values were writtén down-to their: fair values,
based largely on a recent appraisal of assets bya - =
professienal valuation firm. Substantially all of the

- property and equipment impairiient charge related’to-

computer software costs. The large majority of the -
identifiable intangible asset costs’ related to capitalized-" -
customer: contracts, acqurred in 1991 and 1993, which, -
in the opinion of management, have no fature value

» Unaltocated investing and financing <= hety which -

‘ngher gains on the sales and

redemption of investments in' 2003 " $2.6
Impairment charge on Medic One, Inc.. =
investment in 2002 i L8
Total o <$3.4

2002 Versus 1001 —lConso,iidated,-Results
The Company’s servrce ‘revénues -and sales for-2002
declined 7% versus revenues for 2001. This _
$23.7 million decline was primarily attributable to.
declinés in the Plumbing and Drain Cleaning segmient’s’
plumbing revenues-(7% or $7.0 million), HVAC repair -
and maintenance revenues (62%- 6r $6.1 million); and "~
drain cleaning revenues (3% or"$3.1 million) and ifi"’
Service America’s revenues from repair ‘services under

~contracts (12% or $6.1 millios).

The declrne in plumbmg revenues is almost entlrely

...........

performed during the year{'while the: decline’in the drain”
cleaning revenués was attributable to a 7% declitie iri thé

" mimber of jobs offset partially: by 4n average price-per-- -

job increase of 4%. The decline'in Plumbing and Drain

"Cleaning’s HVAC repair and maintenance revenués was -

attributable to the: Company’s decision’in 2001 to exit -~
this line of business. During 2002, the Company decided
to retain the largest and most-profitable of the HVAC
and non-branded plumbing busifiesses because the - - -
Comipany believes this business will genérate more c¢ash-
than could be obtained by selling it and reinvesting the
cash in passive investments. Despite a 7% decline in- total
job count for 2002 versus 2001, Plumbmg and Drain
Cleaning ‘was able to sllghtly mcrease its overall gross

profit ds a percent of revenues in 2002 compared wrth

2001. _
The decline in Service America’s service contract

‘revenues is attributable to’ 1nsufﬁc1ent sales+of new servicé
~ contracts'to replace service contracts that were not
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renewed either by Service America or'the ¢ustomer.: The -
year-to-year-decline’in service ‘contract revénues is - "
antlcxpated to continue during 2003,7as Service- America
in the:fourth quarter of 2002 cancelled appro‘amately
5% of-its ourstandmg service contracts that-wére too”
costly to service, as measured by the ‘number of- service -
calls during the 'year. These cancelled sefvice contracts
generated annual revenués of apprdxrmatelv $1.8 miillion.
Consolidated cost of services provided and:goods sold :
(excluding deprecranon) for 2002 declined’ 9% versus - !

.such costs in 2007. The primary componenrs ‘of cost of )
- sérviees prov1ded and .goods sold (excludmg deprec1at10n)‘

are salaries, wages and benefits of service techniciansand
field- personnel miaterial costs, insurance costs and service
_vehiclé.costs.-Prior to. 2002, amertrzatlonﬂf—goodW1ll——~——~
was also included in"th# cost of services provided-and" <
goods’sold. Effective Décember 31, 2001, the’ ‘ddoption of
SFAS'NG6. 142: eliminated the amortization' of goodwill.:

This accountirig change accounted for 2- percentageé

points of the 9% decline in cost of Services provrded and
goods sold in 2002 versis 2001. The remaining 7% -
declirie in the cost of services provided and-goods'sold-is”
consrstent with the declme in-révenueés for 2002 versus

- 2001.

G&:A expenses for 2002 declined $5 5 mrlhon or -
10%; versus 2001 within the followmg operat1ons (m '
millions): ' : :

Plumbing and Dram Cleamng $51 B
Serv1ce Amerlca , 4
“Total .. $5.5.

&

The decline i‘n Plumbing and Drain Cleaning G&A is. :
largely attributable to reductions in discretionary . -
compensation and benefits,. resulting from failure to ,J
achieve proﬁta,blllty targets in 2002, as shown below (

mrlllons) r c T L oL e
“Elimination of restricted stock awards 81,8 T

" Reduiction in"wages -and e
dlscretronary* benefits- 1.0

Reduction in discretionaty thrift: .

-plan contributien-; . .~ . . L0

;. Reduction in-incentive compensation. . 9

., Reduction in.deferred compensation. .. .. ..

... expense component of G&A as. the:..
.. result of adjusting deferred liability "

" accruals for market losses o mvested

by .

‘assets held in beneﬁt trusts
“All other " | o e
- Total " C o A

i

The $400,000-reduction in G&A expenses"ar‘Servic‘e .
Amerrca is attributable to that segment s reduction in the
number of administrative employees necessitated by the
decline. in the. number of service contracts sold and :
serviced during the year.
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Selling and marketing (“Selling”) expenses for 2002 and most of the remainder to lower salaries and wages. -

declined $2.6 million, or 5%, versus 2001. This decline is . Depreciation expense for 2002 declined $808,000, or -
attributable to Service America’s $1.2 million reduction - 6%, versus 2002. Of this decline, $500,000 was

in Selling expenses in 2002 as a result of decreases in the  attributable to the decreased depreciation expense at
number of selling employees (primarily outbound- .. - Service America, largely, related to fewer purchases of
telemarketing) throughout 2002. Plumbing and Drain .- vans for service technicians in recent years. Depreciation
Cleaning Selling expenses for 2002 declined- $1.4- million- expense for Plumbing and Drain Cleaning in 2002
versus 2001. Approximately 30% of this reduction was declined slightly versus 2001.

due to lower spending on non-yellow pages advertising .

- Impairment, restructuring and similar expenses for 2002 included an impalrment charge of $20,342,000 for the -
~ write-down of Service America’s goodwill to its falr value at December 31, 2002. For 2001, these expenses mcluded
the followmg charges (m thousands) ‘ ' : : S

Plumbing )
and Drain  Service
Cleaning - America _ Total -

~ Restructuring expenses e B . o
Cost of exiting HVAC and non-Roto- Rooter branded plumbmg businesses  $11,205 $ — $11,205
Cost of closing Sérvice America’s. Tucson branch - _ — 1,171 1,171

Expenses not expected to recur (similar expenses): - -

Charges for accelerating the vesting of restricted stock awards in connection

with the anticipated revision of the Company’s long ~tefm incentive plans a '
. in 2002 L g 5,294 146 5,440
Severance charges for 10 1nd1v1duals incurred in connection w1th reducing

administrative expenses; largely at the Plumblng and Dram Cleaning ‘ _ S

segment’s corporate office 2,909 757 3,666
Resolution of overtime pay issues with the U.S. Departrnent of Labor, ’ '

relating primarily to Plumbing and Drain Cleaning’s prior years

compensation expense . . _ 2,749 — 2,749
Property and equipment impairment charges B . 337 166 © 503
Total restructuring and similar expenses o o $22 494 - $2,240 $24 734
The Company’s loss from operations declined from $20 3 mllhon for the write-down of Serv1ce Amerlca $°

$11.6 million in 2001 to $2.7 million in 2002. Operating goodw1ll Operatmg expenses for 2001 1ncluded prétax
expenses for 2002 included an impairment charge of
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. restructuring and similar expenses of $24.7 million and
~ the following other unusual charges (in thousands)

lumbmg ,
and Drain’  Service ~

Cleamn& Amerlca Total

Amounts included in cost .
of services provided and
goads sold:

“Additional casualty
insurance expense "
recorded to reflect

“increase in valuation
of insurance claims o
for prior years %1411 0§ —

_Terminated . S
lease- obhganons : = - 69 69

All other .- 414 414
- Amounts mcluded in ‘ "
G&A expenses:

Terminated

- lease obligations 166 - — 166

All other - - 417 ¢ — 417

Total other

unusual charges $1,994 $483  $2,477

During 2002, the HVAC and non—Roto-Rooter—bréndéd o

‘businesses that were disposed of generated $403,000 in
service revenues and sales and operating losses of
$106,000. During 2001, these businesses generated

service revenues and sales of $6.3 million and operating
losses of $754,000. Also in 2001, Service. Amerlca s
Tucson branch generated $1. 7 million of service revenues
and sales and recorded an operating loss of $430,000.

- The elimination of the restricted stock awards reduced
G&A expenses by approximately $1.9 million per year
($1.8 million in the Plumbing and Drain Cleaning
segment and $100,000 at Service America) beginning in

2002. The cost of a replacement long-term incentive plan .

is not estimable at this time. The employee severance
charges for Plumbing and Drain Cléaning provided
approximately $600,000 in annual savmgs starting in
2002.

Interest expense, substantially all of Wthh is cla351ﬁed
as unallocated investing and financing — net, declined
from $5.4 million in 2001 to. $2.9 million in 2002. This
- decline is attributable-to lower debt levels and lower
interest rates in 2002.

The pretax loss on extinguishment of debt of
"~ $2.6 million ($1.7 million aftertax or $.18 per share) in
2001 arose from the Company’s decision to retire its
- higher interest rate debt in Décember 2001.

$1,411 -

Other income — net declined from $5.0 miillion in »
2001 to' $4.3 million in 2002, primarily as a result of an
impairment charge of $1.2 million, partially offset by a

. $441,000 increase in interest income in 2002. The . .

impairment charge arose from the decline in value of the
Comipany’s invéstment in the redeemable preferred stock
of Medic-One; Inc. (“Medic One”); a privately held
provider of ambulance and wheelchair transportation

services. During 2002, Medic One violated certain of its

debt covenants. As of December 31, 2002, Medic One
had not cured the violations or obtained a waiver for =
such violations. Despite the fact that Medic One reported
positive income from operations in 2002 and 2001,~itA
would apparently be unable to continue operations. ..

~ without the continued forbearance of debt covenant - =
violations. If Medic One’s lender called its debst, it is

likely that Medic One would be forced into bankruptcy :

or forced liquidation. Insuch circumstances, the .

possibility that the Company could recover any
significant portion of its investment is considered small.
As ‘a result, the Company concluded that the decline in

" the value of its investment i Medic One was other than

temporary at December 31, 2002, and wrote down its

“investment to its estimated net reahzable value (nil).

Other'income — net by reporting category is
summanzed below (in rmlhons)

| 2002 2001
Unallocated Investing and o

Financing — net " $4.6 $6.0

. Plumbxng and Drain Cleaning .7y (1.9)

Service America .. - - - . 4 9

Total ‘ $5 0

$4.3

The dechne in other income cla551ﬁed as unallocated
investing and financing - net is attributable to the
previously mentioned investment impairment charge. The
decline in the Plumbing and Drain Cleaning segment’s

-net other expense for 2002 versus 2001 is attributable
‘primarily to intercompany interest income of $231,000 in

2002 versus expense of $414,000 in 2001. The decline in
Service America’s net other income for 2002 versus 2001
is attributable to lower interest income primarily as the
result of lower interest rates in 2002.

The Company’s effective income tax rate for
continuing operations was negative 268. 5% in 2002 as

~ comparéd with positive 31.7% in 2001. The negative

effective rate in 2002 is caused by the nondeductibility of
Service America’s goodwill impairment charge in 2002.
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The loss from continuing operations was $8.9 million ($.90 per share) in 2002 as compared with $10.8 million
($1.11 per share) for 2001. Significant items affecting the loss from continuing operations for 2002 included Service
America’s aftertax goodwill impairment charge of $20.3 million ($2.06 per share), an aftertax investment impairment
charge of $780,000 ($.08 per share) and aftertax capital gains on the sales of investments of $775,000 ($.08 per
share). Significant items affecting the loss from continuing operations for 2001 included the aftertax loss from
extinguishment of debt ($1.7 million or $.18 per share) and aftertax restructuring and similar expenses and other
unusual charges totaling $16.9 million ($1.74 per share) as summarized below (in thousands):

Restructuring expenses:

Cost of exiting HVAC and non-Roto-Rooter-branded plumbing businesses

Cost of closing Service America’s Tucson branch
Expenses not expected to recur {similar expenses):

Charges for accelerating the vesting of restricted stock awards in connection
with the anticipated revision of the Company’s long-term incentive plans

in 2002

Severance charges for 10 individuals incurred in connection with reducing

administrative expenses

Resolution of overtime pay issues with the U.S. Department of Labor, relating

primarily to prior years’ compensation expense
Property and equipment impairment
Total restructuring and similar expenses
Other unusual charges:

Additional casualty insurance expense recorded to reflect increase in valuation

of insurance claims for prior years
Terminated lease obligations
Other

Total restructuring and similar expenses and other unusual charges

Also affecting the résults for 2001 are aftertax goodwill
amortization of $3,888,000 ($.40 per share)
(amortization of goodwill ceased effective December 31,
2001) and aftertax gains on the sales of investments of
$703,000- ($.07 per share).
~ Discontinued operations for 2002 included

$3.4 million from the operations of and gain on the sale
of Patient Care {sold in 2002), a $2.9 million federal
income tax refund related to Omnia (sold in 1997),
$744,000 additional expense {($1.1 million pretax) for the
sublease related to the 1991 sale of DuBois and other
adjustments aggregating $797,000. The adjustments to
the sublease accrual of $1.1 million in 2002 and
$1.7 million in 2001 were made to cover rental charges
for vacant space previously occupied by the Company’s
former subsidiary, DuBois. Prior to December 31, 2002,
the sublease accrual was calculated under the assumption
that all of the vacant space would be subleased at
various dates and at market rental rates. Although the
Company was able to sublease varying amounts of space
during the past two years, it has been unable to sublease
one of the floors covered under its lease. The adjustments
made in 2002 decreased the amount of sublease rentals
that were assumed to be received to include rentals only

" Plumbing
and Drain  Service
Cleaning  America Total
$ 6,765 $ — § 6,765
—_ 707 707
3,417 87 3,504
2,033 489 2,522
1,656 — 1,656
206 100 306
14,077 1,383 15,460
839 — 839
101 41 142
254 248 502
$15,271 $1,672 $16,943

from current sublessees. As a result, the sublease acctual
now covers the cost of all unoccupied space, plus the
shortfall between current sublease rentals and contract
rental rates and operating costs. No further charges for
this liability are anticipated.

The net loss declined from $12.2 million ($1.25 per . -
share) in 2001 to a loss of $2.5 million ($.26 per share)
in 2002. The net losses include income from discontinued
operations of $6.3 million ($.64 per share) in 2002 and a
loss from discontinued operations of $1.5 million ($.15
per share) in 2001. Unusual items affecting the net loss
for 2002 included Service America’s aftertax goodwill
impairment charge of $20.3 million ($2.06 per share), an
aftertax investment impairment charge of $780,000 ($.08
per share) and aftertax capital gains on the sales of
investments of $775,000 ($.08 per share). Unusual items
affecting the net loss for 2001 included aftertax
restructuring and similar expenses and other unusual
charges totaling $16.9 million ($1.74 per share) as
summarized above, aftertax goodwill amortization of -
$3.9 million ($.40 per share — amortization of goodwill
ceased effective December 31, 2001) and aftertax gains
on the sales of investments of $703,000 ($.07 per share).
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2002 Versus 2001 — Segment Results

The aftertax earnings of the Plumbing and Drain
Cleaning segment increased $18.5 million from a loss of
$8.8 million in 2001 to income of $9.8 million in 2002.
The loss for 2001 included the following aftertax
restructuring and similar expenses and other unusual
charges (in thousands):

Restructuring expenses:

Cost of exiting HVAC and non-Roto-

Rooter-branded plumbing businesses
Expenses not expected to recur (similar
expenses):

Resolution of overtime pay issues with the
U.S. Department of Labor, relating
primarily to prior years’
compensation expense

Charges for accelerating the vesting of
restricted awards in connection with the
anticipated revision of the Company’s
long-term incentive plans

Property and equipment
impairment charges

Severance charges for 9 individuals,
incurred in connection with reducing
administrative expenses

$ 6,765

1,656

3,417
206

Total restructuring and similar expenses 14,077
Other unusual charges:

- Additional casualty insurance expense
recorded to reflect increase in valuation
of insurance claims for prior years

Terminated lease obligations

Other

839
101
254

Total

_In addition, aftertax amortization of goodwill, which™ —
ceased effective December 31, 2001, totaled $3.1 million
for 2001 versus nil for 2002.

The aftertax loss of the Service America segment
increased from $686,000 in 2001 to $20.0 million in
2002, primarily due to an aftertax impairment charge of
$20.3 million in 2002. The impairment charge is based
on an appraisal firm’s valuation of Service America’s
business as of December 31, 2002. The fair value of
Service America was calculated using an average of the
enterprise value determined under a capital markets
valuation and discounted cash flows using updated
income and cash flow projections for Service America’s
business. The capital markets method calculates an
enterprise value based on valuations at which comparable
businesses sold in the capital markets and based on
certain financial ratios and statistics. The income and
cash flow projections are updated each year as part of
the Company’s annual business plan process and take
into consideration the changing marketplace and

2,033

$15,271
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changing operating conditions. The decline in the overall
valuation of Service America was a direct result of lower
revenue, earnings and cash flow projections due to the
continued decline in the contract base of the business
(19% decline in 2002). These projections were adjusted
to reflect that Service America missed achieving its
budgeted revenues for 2002 by $8.7 million, or 13%,
and missed achieving its budgeted gross margin by
$4.5 million, or 26%.

Amounts for Service America for 2001 include the
following restructuring and similar expenses and other
unusual charges (in thousands):

Restructuring expenses: -
Cost of closing Service America’s

Tucson branch §$ 707
Expenses not expected to recur (similar
expenses):
Severance charges for one individual, .
incurred in connection with reducing
administrative expenses 489
Property and equipment
impairment charges 100
Charges for accelerating the vesting of
restricted stock awards in connection
with the anticipated revision of the
Company’s long-term incentive plans
in 2002 87
Total restructuring and similar expenses 1,383
Other unusual charges:
Terminated lease obligations 41
Other 248
Total $1,672

- In addition; aftertax amottization of goodwill, which

ceased effective December 31, 2001, totaled $807,000 for
2001 versus nil for 2002.

Unallocated investing and financing — net, which
includes unallocated financing costs and investment
income, increased $897,000 from $414,000 aftertax in
2001 to $1,311,000 aftertax in 2002. The increase is
attributable to the following (in thousands):

Lower interest expense in 2002 due to lower

debt levels $1,742
Interest income on tax refund in 2002 530
Impairment charge on Medic One investment
in 2002 {780)
Lower intercompany interest income in 2002
{primarily Plumbing and Drain
Cleaning segment) (657)
Other 62
Total § 897
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Critical Accountmg Pohc;es

Insurance Accruals

-As the Company self-insures for casualty insurance
claims (workers’ compensation, auto liability and general
liability), management closely: monitors and frequently
evaluates its historical claims experierice to estimate the -
appropriate level of accrual for insured claims. The’ ‘
Company s third-party administrator (‘““TPA”) processes
clairns on behalf of the Company and reviews claims on
a monthly basis. Currently, the Company’s exposure on
any single claim is capped at $250,000. For most of the
years prior to 1999, the caps for general liability and
Workers compensatlon were $500,000 per claim.

- In developing its estimates, the Company. ‘accumulates -
hlstoncal claims-data for-the previous 10 years to
calculate loss development factors (“LDF”) by insurance
coverage type. LDFs are applied to known claims to
estimate the ultimate potential liability for known and
unknown claims for each open policy year. Prior to
2003, the LDFs were updated every three years and
reviewed by the Company’s outside professional actuaries
for reasonableness in view of the Company’s claims
experience and insurance industry trends. Beginning in
2004, LDFs will be updated annually. The current LDFs
were last updated as of March 2003 and w1ll next.be

updated in March 2004. Because this methodology relies
heavily on hlst0r1cal claims data, the key risk is whether .
the historical claims are an accurate predictor of future. -
claims exposure. The risk also exists that certain ¢laims
have been incurféd and not reported on a timely basis. - -
To mitigate these risks, the Company, in conjunction
with its TPA, closely monitors claims to ensure timely -
accumulation of ‘data and compares its claims trends with
the industry experience of its TPA. As an indication of
the sensitivity of the accrued liability to reported claims,
the Company’s analysis indicates that a 1% across-the-
board i increase or decrease in the amount of reported

claims would increase or decrease the accrued i insurance
liability ar December 31, 2003, by 4.4% or $697 000.

,lnvestments

Equity investments’ with read1ly determmable falr
values are recorded at their fair values. Other equity
investments are recorded at cost, subject to-write-down -
for impairment. The Company regularly reviews its
investments for impairment. As a result of this review, in
the fourth quarter of 2002, the Company reduced the
carrying value of its investment in the redeemable
preferred stock of Medic One from its original cost of

$1,'2‘OO',OOO"to nil. Medic One, a privately held provider

of ambulance and wheelchair transportation services, is
in violation of certain covenants under a line of credit
that expired in November 2002. The lender has not
waived such violations and has the right to call the debt.
If the debt were called Medic One could be forced into
bankruptcy.

The Company also has a Patient Care common stock
pu;chase warrant (“PC Warrant™) for the purchase of up
to 2% of privately held Patient Care. The PC Warrant
has a catrying value of $1,445,000, which was its
estimated fair value on the date of issuance in
October 2002, Patient Care’s operating results for 2003 -
have declined from 2002 levels, but Patient Care remains
profitable and paid down significant amounts of bank
debt in 2003. The Company views this investment as a
long-term investment and believes any decline in the fair
value of the‘PC Warrant is not “other than temporary”
as of December 31,.2003. Nonetheless, market
conditions could change in the coming year and cause the
Company to reassess its valuation of this investment.

Equity Investment (Vitas)

The Company’s 37% investment in Vitas common
stock exceeds its share of Vitas” net book value by
approximately $16.6 million. On a preliminary basis, the
Company estimated that $3.7 million of this excess is
attributable to the excess value of computer software,
with a.five-year life and the remainder to goodwill with
an indefinite life. Amortization of this excess reduced the.
Company’s equity in the earnings of Vitas by $97,000 in
2003. In 2004, as a result of completing the acquisition
of the 63% of Vitas it did not own in 2003, the
Company will conduct a thorough review to value all
assets and liabilities of Vitas at their fair values. Thus, it
is possible that the Company will identify other
intangible assets with different useful lives.

Goodwill .

“The Company annually tests the goodwill balances of
its reporting units,for impairment using appraisals
performed by a valuation firm. The valuation of each
reporting unit is dependent upon many factors, some of
which are market-driven and beyond the Company’s
control. The valuations of goodwill for the Company’s
Roto-Rooter Services and Roto-Rooter Franchising and
Products reporting units indicate that the fair value of
goodwill for each of these tinits exceeds its respective
book Value by a significant amount. The valuations of
Service America in 2003 and 2002 reduced goodwill for
this reporting unit to nil.
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Critical Accounting Policies Related to Vitas

Allowance For Uncollectible Accounts

Vitas’ net revenue is reported at the estimated net
realizable amounts due from third-party payors, primarily
Medicare and Medicaid. Payors may deny payment for
services in whole or in part on the basis that such
services are not eligible for coverage and do not qualify
for reimbursement. Vitas’ management estimates denials
each period and makes adequate provision for them in its
financial statements. Due to the complexity of the laws
and regulations affecting the Medicare and Medicaid
programs, estimates can and do change by material
amounts in future periods.

Vitas receives biweekly payments for patient services
from the Medicare program under the Prospective
Interim Payment (“PIP”’) System. These payments are
subsequently applied against specific Medicare accounts
as claims are processed by the fiscal intermediary. The
unapplied portion of these biweekly PIP payments is
recorded as a reduction to patient accounts receivable.

Vitas maintains a policy of providing an allowance for
uncollectible accounts based-on a formula tied to the
aging of accounts receivable by payor class and historical
write-off rates. Vitas provides allowances for specific -
accounts determined to be uncollectible when such
determinations are made. Accounts are written off when
all collection efforts are exhausted.

Purchase Accounting

On a preliminary basis, the Company has identified the
following fair value adjustments to the historical bases of
Vitas® assets (in thousands):

Covenant not to compete with

former CEO $18,000
Computer software 10,000

Consulting agreement with o
former CEO 7,000
Total $35,000

These assets are assumed to have useful lives of 8 years,
S years and 7 years, respectively. The Company also
anticipates that a significant portion of the excess of the
purchase price over the book value of Vitas® assets and
liabilities will be allocated to goodwill or other indefinite-
lived 1ntang1ble assets. Upon completion of the ‘
Company’s review to value all of the assets and hablhtles
of Vitas at their fair values, it is possible that the
Company will identify other intangible assets with-
different lives, and that the amount of indefinite-lived
intangible assets will be s1gmﬁcantly less than originally
-estimated. ,

Recent Accounting Statements
SFAS No. 143

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”) approved the issuance of Statement of
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Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 143,
Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. It is
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002,
and requires recognizing legal obligations associated with
the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result
from the acquisition, construction or development or
normal operation of a long-lived asset. Since the
Company has no material asset retirement obhgatlons,
the adoption of SFAS No. 143 in 2003 did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

SFAS No. 145

In April 2002, the FASB approved the issuance of SFAS
No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and
64, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13 and Technical
Corrections. It is generally effective for transactions
occurring after May 15, 2002. The Company’s adoption
of SFAS No. 145 in 2003.resulted in reclassifying its
2001 loss on early extinguishment of debt from
extraordinary to a separate line within continuing ,
operations, but did not otherwise have a material impact
on its financial statements.

SFAS No. 146

‘In July 2002, the FASB approved the issuance of SFAS
No. 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or
Disposal Activities. Generally, SFAS No. 146 stipulates
that defined exit costs (including restructuring and
employee termination costs) are to be recorded on an
incurred basis rather than on a commitment basis, as was
previously required. This statement is effective for exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The
Company’s adoption of SFAS No. 146 in 2003 did not
have a material impact on its financial statements.

FIN No. 45

In November 2002, the FASB approved the issuance of
FASB Interpretation (“FIN’’) No. 45, Guarantor’s
Accounting and Disclosure for Guarantees, Including
Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others. The initial
recognition and initial measurement provisions of this
Interpretation are applicable to guarantees issued or
modified after December 31, 2002. The Company’s °
adoption-of FIN No. 45 in 2003 did not have a material
impact on its financial statements.

SFAS No. 148

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148,
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition
and Disclosure. It is effective for annual periods ending,
and for interim periods beginning, after December 15,
2002. Because the Company uses Accounting Pr1nc1ples
Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees, to account for stock-based compensation, this
statement did not have a material impact on the
Company’s financial statements.
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FIN No. 46 AND FIN No. 46R.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — an
- Interpretation of Accountmg Reséarch Bulletin No: 51..
This Interpretation is intended to clarify the application
of the majority voting interest requirement, of ARB
No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, to certain.
entities in which equity investors do not have the
‘characteristics of a’controlling financial interest or do not
- have sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its

activities without additional subordinated financial

support from other parties. The controlling financial. .
interest may be achieved through arrangements that do

not_involve voting interests. FIN No. 46 may be applied

prospectlvely with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of
the date on which it is first applied or by restating
previously issued financial statements for one or more
years with a cumulative-effect adjustment as of the

. “beginhing of the first year restated. FIN No. 46 is

. effective immediately to variable interests in a variable

- interest entity (“VIE”) created or obtained after _

" January 31, 2003. As amended by FASB Staff Position
{“FSP”’) FIN 46-6, FIN No. 46 became effective for
*variable interests in a VIE created before February 1, -
2003, at the end of the first interim or annual period
ending after December 15, 2003.

Subsequent to issuing FIN No. 46 and FSP FIN 46-6,
the FASB continued to propose modifications and issue
* ESPs that changed and clarified FIN No. 46. These
modifications and FSPs were subsequently incorporated
. into FIN No. 46 (revised) (“FIN No. 46R”), which
‘replaces FIN No. 46. Among other things, relative to FIN
No. 46, FIN No. 46R a) essentially excludes operating
businesses from its provisions subject to four conditions,
b) states the provisions of FIN'No. 46R are not required
* to be applied if a company is unable, subject to making
an exhaustive effort, to obtain the necessary information,
c) includes new definitions and examples of what variable
interests are, d) clarifies and changes the definition of a
variable interest entity, and ¢) clarifies and changes the
definition and treatment of de facto agents, as that term
is defined in FIN No. 46 and FIN No. 46R. FIN
No. 46R was issued December 23, 2003. The Company,
will ‘apply FIN No. 46R to all variable interest entities at
the end of the first quarter of 2004.

The Company has evaluated its contractual -
relationships with its Roto-Rooter franchisees and has -
concluded that its interests in the franchisees are not
variable interests as defined in FIN No. 46 and FIN
No. 46R: The Company ‘maintains contractual

" relationships with certain ‘independent contractors to

‘provide plumbing and drain cleaning services in specified
territories primarily using the Roto-Rooter name. The
Company has no equity interest in any of the

independent contractors, but in many cases, loans money
to the contractor to-assist in financing equipment and
working capital needs. The loans are. generally partially
secured by the contractors’ equipment and are:
guaranteed by the business owner. The Company’s
contractor agreements do not require its contractors to
provide all the financial information necessary to apply
the provisions of FIN No. 46R to its contractors.
Furthermore, the contractors generally have not provided

all the financial dara they are required to prOVJde under
the contractor agreements. :

The Company evaluated fits contractual relationships
with the four independent contractors that commenced
operations in 2003 (2003 Contractors™} and determined
they are potentially subject.to consolidation under FIN
No: 46 as a result of loans made to the contractors. The
Company has been unable to obtain sufficient
information necessary to determine whether the 2003
Contractors should be consolidated. The Company is in
the process of evaluating the new provisions of FIN

- No. 46R relative to its 2003 Contractors and to its pre-

February 2003 contractor arrangements. At this time, the

“Company does not believe that the consolidation of any
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of its contractors, if required under FIN No. 46 or FIN
No. 46R, would materially impact its operating results.
Instead, consolidation of some, if any, of these
arrangements is more likely to result in a “grossing up”
of amounts, such as revenues and expenses, with little or
no net change to the Company’s net income or cash
flows. None of these entities has been consolidated in the
Company’s financial statements.

Under FIN No. 46, the Company is permitted to
consolidate the accounts of the Chemed Capital Trust
(“CCT”) in its financial statemments due to the existence
of a call feature of the Preferred Securities whereby the
Company can call the Preferred Securities for
prepayment. As disclosed above, the Company currently
intends to call the Preferred Securities after March 135,
2004, at which time the Preferred Securities may be
prepaid without premium.

When FIN No. 46R becomes fully effective for the
Company in the first quarter of 2004, the Company will
be required to de-consolidate the accounts of the Chemed
Capital Trust, because the call feature may no longer be
considered as a condition for consolidation. As a result,
the current balance sheet caption that reads
“Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred securities
of the Chemed Capital Trust” will be revised to read
“Convertible junior subordinated debentures™ in the
same. dollar amount as the Preferred Securities. Within |
the statement of operations, the “Distributions on
preferred securities” will be reclassified as interest
expense. '
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SFAS No. 150 = . . -
In May-2003, the FASB approved the issuance of SFAS
No. 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity. As a
result of the issuance of this pronouncement, the
Company now reports the mandatorily redeemable
convertible preferred securities of the Chemed Capital -
Trust as a noncurrent liability rather than in the.
“mezzanine” (i.e., between liabilities and equity) as .
reported prior to June 2003. This reclassification does
not affect the Company’s compliance with its debt -
covenants: The adoption of this statement did not ‘impact
the statement of operations. B

P

Safe Harbor Statement Und‘évr the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
Forward-Looking Information - ,

In addition to historical information, this report
contains forward-looking statements and performance

L

trends that are based upon assumptions stibject to certain
known and unknown risks,- uncertainties, contingencies
and other factors. Such forward-looking statements and
trends include, but are not limited ‘to, those relating to -
the ability’of Service'America to increase its gross profit
margin, the impact of laws and regulations on Company
operations and the recoverability of deferred tax assets.
Variances in any or all of the risks, uncertainties,

“contingencies and other factors from the Company’s

Regarding
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assumptions could cause ‘actual results to differ materially
from these forward-looking statements and trends. The ,
Company’s ability to deal with the unknown outcomes of-- -
these evénts, many of which -are beyond the control'of
the Company, may afféct the reliability of its projections
and other financial matters. '

o




Corpor'ate;‘ 'I,nf”c")rmation

Corporate Headquarters i

Roto- Rooter Inc. )

Suite 2600 - g

255 East F1fth Street «
Cincinnati, Ohio-45202- 4726

513-762-6900 T

www.RotoRooter.com

Independent Accountants

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

Transfer-Agents & Registrars

Individuals of record needing address changes, account
balances, account consolidations, replacement of lost
certificates or lost checks, dividend reinvestment plan-
statements or cost-basis data, 1099s, or assistance with
other administrative matters relating to Roto-Rooter
Stock and Chemed Capital Trust Convertible Preferred
Securities (Chemed Preferred Securities) should direct
their inquiries to the designated transfer agent listed
below.

Roto-Rooter Stock Transfer Agent & Registrar:

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Shareowner Services
P.O. Box 64854
St. Paul, Minnesota 55164-0854

- Telephone: 800-468-9716 (toll-free) ,
Web site: www.wellsfargo.com/shareownerservices

-All questions relating- to administration of Roto-Rooter
Stock must be handled by Wells Fargo.

" Chemed Preferred Securities Transfer Agent & Registrar:
Mellon Investor Services LLC
Overpeck Centre
85 Challenger Road
Ridgefield Park, New Jersey 07660
Telephone: 800-756-3353 (toll-free)
~ For conversions: 800-777-3674 (toll-free)
Web site: www.melloninvestor.com

All questions relating to administration of Chemed
Preferred Securities must be handled by Mellon.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan for Holders
of 25 or More Shares

The Roto-Rooter Automatic Dividend Remvestment
Plan is available to shareholders of record owning a
minimum of 25 shares of Roto-Rooter Capital Stock.- A
plan brochure, including fee schedule, and enrollment

" information are available from the Dividend

Reinvestment Agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., at the
address listed above. Chemed Preferred Securities are not
eligible to participate in this Plan. '

Corporate Inquiries

. Questions concerning company operations and
financial results should be directed to David P. Williams,

Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, at Roto-Rooter

corporate headquarters by writing or by calling 800-224-

3633 or 513-762-6901.

Annual and quarterly reports, press releases, corporate
governance guidelines, Board committee charters, Policies
on Business Ethics, the Annual Report on Form 10-K,
and other printed materials may be obtained from
Roto-Rooter Investor Relations without charge by
writing or by calling 800-224-3633 or 513-762-6463.
Printed materials may also be viewed and downloaded
from Roto-Rooter’s Web site at www.rotorooterinc.com.

Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting of Shareholders of Roto-Rooter,
Inc., will be held on Monday, May 17, 2004, at 11 a.m.
in the Grand Ballroom of The Phoenix Club, 812 Race
Street, Cincinnati, Ohio.

Number of Shareholders

The approximate number of shareholders of record of
Roto-Rooter Capital Stock was 3,423 on December 31,
2003. (This number does not include shareholders with
shares held under beneficial ownership or within
clearinghouse positions of brokerage firms and banks nor
holders of Chemed Preferred Securities.)

Stock Exchange Listings :

Roto-Rooter Capital Stock is listed on the New York
Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol RRR. Chemed
Capital Trust Preferred Securities are listed on the
NASDAQ Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board under the
symbol CHEQP,

Capital Stock & Dividend Data

The high and low closing prices for Roto-Rooter
Capital Stock, as obtained from the New York Stock
Exchange NYSEnet Web site, and dividends per share
paid by quarter follow:

. * - Dividends
, Closing Paid
High Low  Per Share

2003 :
First Quarter .......... $36.51 $31.55 $.12
Second Quarter ........ 40.20 32.98 A2
Third Quarter ......... 40.35 34.42 A2
Fourth Quarter ........ 51.78 33.69 A2
2002 _ ,
First Quarter .......... $38.30  $33.52 $.11
Second Quarter ........ 39.35 33.60 11
Third Quarter . ......... 37.04 29.85 11
Fourth Quarter ........ 37.84 29.65 <12
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- Visit our Web sites at
www.RotoRooter.com,
www.serviceamerica.com, and
wiwvw.vitas.com.




